Australia’s leading specialist trustee company

EQT Holdings Limited
2016 annual report

Company Profile
Australia’s leading specialist trustee company
EQT Holdings Limited
ABN 22 607 797 615

established

Office Locations

1888

by a specific
Act of Victorian
Parliament

We are partners with
clients and their advisers,
helping them with the
financial and emotional
challenges arising from
the preservation, growth
and intergenerational
management of
their wealth.

Helping families
within Australia
protect their
wealth

Brisbane

Perth

Level 10, 239 George Street
Brisbane, Queensland 4001

Level 24, Allendale Square
77 St Georges Terrace
Perth, Western Australia 6000

Sydney

Head Office

Level 4, 124 Walker Street
North Sydney, New South Wales 2060

Level 2, 575 Bourke Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000

Kew

Telephone: (03) 8623 5000
Facsimile: (03) 8623 5200
Email: equity@eqt.com.au

Suite 4, 677 High Street
Kew East, Victoria 3102

Former directors

Board of Directors
JA (Tony) Killen OAM

Anne M O’Donnell

BA, FAICD, FAIM
(Chairman, Independent)

BA (Bkg & Fin), MBA,
FAICD, SF Fin
(Independent)

Michael (Mick) J O’Brien
FIAA, CFA, GAICD
(Managing Director)

D. Glenn Sedgwick
BCom, FAICD, FCA
(Independent)
(Appointed 8 August 2016)

Kevin J Eley
CA, F FIN, FAICD
(Independent)

Alice JM Williams

The Hon Jeffrey G
Kennett AC
HonDBus (Ballarat),
Hon LL D (Deakin)
(Independent)

Auditor
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
550 Bourke Street
Melbourne, Victoria 3000

BCom, FCPA, FAICD,
ASFA AIF, CFA
(Independent)

Robin BO Burns

David F Groves

DipAcc, FAICD
(Resigned 1 July 2016)

BCom, MCom, CA, FAICD
(Resigned 14 December 2015)

Company Secretaries
Carmen Odette
Martin Geoffory
Lunderstedt,
Walsh,
BCom, Grad Cert Fin
BBus, MBA, GAICD
Plan, AGIA

Annual General Meeting
Friday 28 October 2016

Share Registry
Computershare Investor Services
Pty Ltd
Yarra Falls, 452 Johnston Street
Abbotsford, Victoria 3067

Corporate Governance
Statement
Our Corporate Governance
Statement is available on our
website: eqt.com.au

Main operating entities: EQT Holdings Limited (ABN 22 607 797 615),
Equity Trustees Limited (ABN 46 004 031 298 AFSL 240975),
Equity Trustees Superannuation Limited (ETSL) (ABN 50 055 641 757 AFSL 229757) and
Equity Trustees Wealth Services Limited (ETWSL) (ABN 33 006 132 332 AFSL 234528).

Contents
02
03

History

2016 in Review

Directors’ Report 2016
Board of Directors
Operating and Financial
Review of the Group
Remuneration Report

Additional information
Auditor’s Independence
Declaration

Directors’ Declaration

16
20
27
37
38
39

Financial Report 2016
Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements
Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of EQT Holdings Limited
Additional Shareholder
Information

42
43
44
45
46
80
82
EQT Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

1

History
Equity Trustees is one of Australia’s largest independent trustee companies, established in 1888 by an Act of the
Victorian Parliament. By 1880, the Victorian gold rush in the 1850’s provided the foundation for Melbourne to become
the largest and richest city in the British Empire outside Britain. The production of great wealth led to a need for secure
management of individual and family wealth at the time, and into the future. The Victorian Government of the day
aimed to meet this need through passing a series of Acts allowing the creation of independent trustees. As a result, on
10 December 1888 Equity Trustees was established under the name Equity Trustees Executors and Agency Company
Limited. The Company’s founder, Joel Fox, served for nearly 50 years as Manager, and later on the Board. A trustee
company by the name of The Trustees Executors and Agency Company Limited (TEA) was established 10 years before
in 1878 by William Templeton; TEA later became ANZ Trustees, and in July 2014, when Equity Trustees acquired
ANZ Trustees, the two historic companies combined to form one of Australia’s oldest and largest listed independent
trustee companies.
Our purpose today remains the same – providing independent and impartial trustee and executor services, partnering
with clients and their advisers, helping with the financial and emotional challenges arising from the preservation,
growth and intergenerational management of wealth.

1936
1888

On 10 December
1888, Equity Trustees
was established by
a specific Act of the
Victorian Parliament.

1931

2014
2003

Sir Robert G. Menzies
was appointed to the
Board (until he became
Prime Minister in 1939).

Acquired ANZ Trustees,
which positioned Equity
Trustees in the ASX 300.
Acquired Wealthpac,
later renaming it
EquitySuper.

2011

1950

2015

2000
By 1931, our revenue
had grown 1000-fold
and Joel Fox now
employed a staff of 90.
The company moved
to new chambers at
472 Bourke Street, the
site of Melbourne’s old
synagogue.
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During WWII and
into the 1950s, Equity
Trustees began dealing
with many widows and
their children. This
marked a change of
focus for the company
and we began
promoting our services
to support families
during their toughest
times.
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Equity Trustees took
on Responsible
Entity, distribution
and relationship
management for
leading Australian
and international
investment managers.

The acquisition of
Lifetime Planning
and Tender Living
Care meant Equity
Trustees could offer
complementary
aged care advice and
placement services for
elderly clients.

At the end of 2015
EquityTrustees Limited
became a subsidiary of
EQT Holdings Limited.
EQT Holdings Limited
is a publicly listed
company on the
Australian Securities
Exchange (ASX: EQT).

2016 in Review
Revenue
composition

Operating
revenue

$83.7m
TWS

CTS

32%

Strong
operating
margin

$24.1m $58.3m

Net profit after tax

$13.3m

Main operating entities
EQT Holdings Limited

Dividend per share
(fully franked)

Equity Trustees Limited

68cps

Equity Trustees Wealth
Services Limited

Equity Trustees
Superannuation Limited

Philanthropy distributed $71m

Sustained Shareholder Return

12%
5%

1 July 2005 to 30 June 2016
46%

5%

FY16
$71m

7%

EQT total shareholder return
S&P/ASX 300 Accumulation Index return
400

10%
15%

+163%
+99%

Assumes all dividends are reinvested.

300

n Medical Research & Health
n Children & Young People

200

n Material Aid & Welfare (Australia)
n Animals & Environment
n Family & Community
n Ageing & Aged Care
n Other*
*Other includes faith-based, arts, women, disability,
material aid and welfare (international).
Note: Indigenous granting included in each category.

Superannuation
business restructured;
administration
outsourced; better
value for approximately
35,000 members

100

Base (100) taken
at 1 July 2005

0
06/05

06/06

06/07

06/08

06/09

EQT total shareholder

Upgrade to more
robust business assurance
and risk governance
framework

06/10

06/11

06/12

06/13

06/14

06/15

06/16

S&P/ASX 300 Accumulation Index

Largest Australian
independent
responsible entity
services provider
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From the
Chairman
JA (Tony) Killen OAM
Transition to stronger platform

Corporate initiatives

During the year we embarked on a number of major
initiatives to strengthen the business and position it for
profitable future growth. I’m pleased to say the business
has successfully completed the corporate restructure
of the Group, upgraded our superannuation offer and
is well advanced on upgrading our business assurance
functions.

During the year shareholders approved a corporate
restructure of the Group via a Scheme of Arrangement,
which we have now implemented. We established a
new non-operating holding company, EQT Holdings
Limited (the Company). The new structure has
provided us with a contemporary corporate model
that provides greater funding efficiency and flexibility.
It is clear at this early stage that the new structure
provides the Company with a far sharper and focused
governance model.

The investment required has been material and
negatively impacted earnings in the year but was a
necessary investment to provide the business with a
sustainable, positive future.

Results and dividend
Operating profit before tax was $26.7m which was
marginally below the prior year at $28.2m, considered a
satisfactory result given lower Australian equity markets
impacting a significant proportion of our business. The
pre-tax operating margin for the year was 32%.

Apart from the corporate restructure, we materially
upgraded our business assurance capability to ensure
our risk management framework is befitting of Equity
Trustees’ dedication to safeguarding client interests.
We also undertook a complete review of our
superannuation products to materially improve both
member outcomes and our competitive offering in the
marketplace.

The result after non-operating
The Board
expenses and net of tax
A final dividend of 34cps, fully franked,
was $13.3m, reflecting the
As a result of Mr Robin Burns’
has been declared, consistent with
material investments made
retirement from the business,
the interim dividend, taking total
in repositioning the business,
the
Board
appointed
dividends for the year to 68cps.
commenced in 2015 and
Mr Michael (Mick) O’Brien
largely completed in 2016.
to the position of Executive
A final dividend of 34cps, fully franked, has been
Director in April and then Managing Director on
declared, consistent with the interim dividend, taking
1 July 2016. We were delighted that Mick agreed to
total dividends for the year to 68cps.
extend his commitment to the Company in this role and
every indication at this early stage is that the Company
The dividend is slightly above the dividend policy
will benefit from his leadership.
range, but is essentially supported by underlying
earnings per share. The Board feels comfortable with
this level, given the significant non-operating expenses
during the year which totalled $5.5m net of tax. While
the dividend yield remains attractive, this year’s
dividend is lower than recent years due to lower equity
market returns and the one-off investments made in
the business. Expense reduction, both operating and
non-operating, is a firm objective of management in
the period ahead.

Longer term
shareholders have
enjoyed above
market total
returns from their
investment in the
Company...
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Longer term shareholders
have
enjoyed
above
market total returns from
their investment in the
Company, as illustrated on
page 3.
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I express the Board’s appreciation to Robin for his
significant achievements, especially in relation to the
ANZ acquisition, and his leadership of the Company
over six years and wish him well for the future.
As part of the ongoing evolution of the Board, I had
announced on 2 March 2016 that I intended to step
down as Chairman in this past term. However, given
the appointment of the new Managing Director, the
Directors requested I commit to stay on the Board
to ensure continuity and stability, which I agreed was
sensible. Hence, I’m offering myself for re-election on
this last occasion and will retire during the next term, if
shareholders approve my election.

...we embarked on a number of major initiatives to
strengthen the business and position it for profitable
future growth... the business has successfully completed
the corporate restructure of the Group, upgraded our
superannuation offer and is well advanced on upgrading
our business assurance functions.
Tony Killen OAM, Chairman

During the year, Mr David Groves retired from the
Board. The Board wants to formally thank David for his
enormous contribution to the Company over 14 years
of service.
I was pleased to recently announce the appointment
of Mr D. Glenn Sedgwick to our Board. I’m very
confident Glenn will bring his vast depth of experience
in operations, technology, organisational practice and
Asian markets for the benefit of the Company.
The Board also took the opportunity of the corporate
restructure to streamline our governance model. The
Board aspires to excellence in governance standards,
the highest ethical standards and leading by example,
and I want to thank my fellow Directors for their
contribution and dedication to this, during a year
of transition.
Our Board Audit Committee is now focused solely
on audit in line with the new Company structure and
Mr Kevin Eley will continue his diligent chairmanship of
this important committee.

Our management and employees
In finishing, I would like to give a vote of thanks to our
employees for their achievements during a year of
transition; on behalf of shareholders and the Board I
want to formally record our appreciation.
Following significant investment during the year, the
Board believes that the Company is in a very good
position to benefit from the opportunities ahead and
to provide attractive and appropriate outcomes and
rewards to all our stakeholders – clients, shareholders,
employees and the wider community.

JA (Tony) Killen OAM
Chairman

A new Compliance Committee – Ms Anne O’Donnell
as Chair – focused on management investment
scheme compliance, has been established under
Equity Trustees Limited.
We have aligned the composition of the Risk Committee
and the Audit Committee (to the extent possible) and
we refreshed the composition of the Remuneration,
Human Resources and Nominations Committee
– Ms Alice Williams as Chair. We have shifted the
Investment Committee from
...new governance structure is
the main Board down to its
relevant subsidiary level.
allowing the Board to focus more

directly on both the performance of
The new governance structure
is allowing the Board to focus the Group as a whole and the strategic
more directly on both the
direction of the Company...
performance of the Group as
a whole and the strategic direction of the Company.
It also allows the overall business to operate more
efficiently.
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From the
Managing Director
Michael (Mick) J O’Brien
Establishing a platform for growth
The 2015/16 year presented the business with some challenges but the year was one of establishing a platform for
growth. The bottom line result for the year was disappointing due to the cost of major investments not able to be offset
by other expense savings. Pleasingly, there were some significant achievements:
 The Company was reorganised under EQT Holdings Limited and while giving us greater capital and funding flexibility
it also improved the overall efficiency of the business. We used the restructure to consolidate all our superannuation
business into one subsidiary that now oversees 13 funds with assets of just under $3b.
 We upgraded our superannuation offering to produce a much more competitively priced product with a contemporary
investment and insurance design, delivering fundamentally better value to our customers. Our Trustee for Partner
model in superannuation saw an increase of 20% in revenue.
 Philanthropy revenue was up on the prior year despite a significant fall in equity markets – an excellent result in this
important and enduring part of our business.
 We are in the final stages of upgrading our business assurance function and while it will better protect the business,
it will also deliver better outcomes to customers.
 In our private client business, the year was notable for pleasing numbers of new clients in compensatory trusts,
Indigenous trusts and in new perpetual charitable trust establishment. In our estate planning area we wrote more
than 1,000 new estate plans, and revenue was up more than 50% on last period. Our Will Bank has now returned to
strong growth.
 In Corporate Trustee Services (CTS), we took the strategic decision to exit funds distribution on the back of our
largest client internalising the distribution function. This change will allow us to focus the business sharply on the
corporate fiduciary opportunities. Despite exiting funds distribution, we achieved a revenue increase of 2% on prior
year on the back of our market leading Responsible Entity (RE) model continuing to prove popular in winning new
clients and new funds.
 We have a high quality asset management capability and during the year saw assets in our funds and mandates grow
from $2.6b to $3.2b in FY16 – an increase of 24%.
 There were a several changes to the leadership team; Philip Gentry joined as Chief Financial Officer and Carmen
Lunderstedt as Company Secretary, both high quality appointments.
 Finally and most importantly and proudly, Equity Trustees, through our Foundation and our clients (those still with us
and those who aren’t) granted more than $70m to many of the most worthy charitable causes in Australia, continuing
to fulfil our important social compact that we’ve undertaken diligently over the last 130 years.

Future direction and priorities
Equity Trustees
operates in a
tremendously
exciting market
segment.

Equity Trustees operates in a tremendously exciting market segment. In the private client
market, we are focused on the fastest growing demographic and wealthiest market segments
in Australia. In the Corporate market, the growth rates are underpinned by the overall growth
in superannuation assets.

Our goal is to be the leader in the provision of specialist fiduciary and support services in
the market. We have been looking after clients’ interests in good times and in bad for more
than 130 years and will continue to focus on this. We are already a leader in many of our
markets – corporate responsible entity services, philanthropy, estate management and trust
management. Our plan is to continue to build on these positions and lift our other services to
a market leadership position.
...our
In the future, we will seek to more fully leverage our brand – two powerful words, “Equity” and
“Trustees”, which really encapsulate everything we seek to do for our clients. Equity Trustees
occupies a position of trust and security. We are not like most diversified financial services
companies in the market because we are a specialist in the services we offer clients and we
believe our independent model provides assurance to clients and partners.
6
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independent
model provides
assurance
to clients...

We have been looking after clients’ interests in good
times and in bad for more than 130 years... We are
already a leader in many of our markets... Our plan
is to continue to build on these positions and lift our
other services to a market leadership position.
Mick O’Brien, Managing Director

The year ahead

Corporate Trustee Services

In the next year our focus will be on clear growth initiatives
for each part of our business. I’ve been in this position
for three months and in that time have sought to sharpen
our focus and our plans to
In the next year
ensure clarity of our strategy
and medium term growth
our focus will be
objectives.
on clear growth

We will remain at the leading edge of fund design,
capitalising on the Attribution Management Investment
Trust (AMIT) regime and ensuring our clients have leading
capability in designing their funds for maximum success.
We will be taking our first steps in the Asian markets. As
the leading provider of RE services in Australia, we will
be partnering with our clients who want to enter these
markets as well as increasing our distribution efforts
in Asia.

Private clients

initiatives for
each part of our
business.

Our plan is to build
on the good work of
recent years. We will be
linking our estate planning, estate management
and trust management activities in a more efficient,
co-ordinated manner to provide clients with a
client-centric model to ensure all aspects of the clients’
needs are being addressed. We will continue to undertake
very targeted distribution activity in this area in the
year ahead.
The year was notable for
building our compensatory
trust and Indigenous trust
business and while it is early
days, we will be looking to
continue this in conjunction
with our partners.

Finally, we will be increasing our efforts in the corporate
trustee market and leveraging the breadth and depth of
experience in our CTS team.

In conclusion

At the end of the financial year, we instigated a review
of our operating model. The early work indicates there
are opportunities to achieve better client outcomes,
internal synergies and also a more productive and
efficient workforce and sales capability. We will be
pursing these with priority in
the period ahead.
opportunities to achieve

...
better client outcomes, internal
synergies and also a more productive
and efficient workforce...

We will be targeting continued growth in estate planning,
which has always been an engine for long-term value
creation for the Company.
Lastly, we have a wonderful philanthropy team. In the
previous year we streamlined our discretionary granting
strategy to five key pillars – Children and Young People,
Medical Research and Health, Ageing and Aged Care,
Animals and Environment and Strategic Opportunities.
We appointed an evaluation manager during the year to
ensure we are achieving maximum impact for our clients
in the community endeavours they choose.
We plan to put considerable effort into building our
‘living donor’ business in the years ahead as Australians
increase their philanthropic efforts in line with
well-established overseas trends.

It was a full year for all our staff
and no doubt will continue to
be. I want to thank them all for
their efforts. In the short time
I’ve been in this role I’ve been
impressed by the dedication and professionalism of our
staff and by their commitment to our core values and
to delivering real benefits for our clients. I also want to
thank the Board for their support and leadership in this
transitional year. Finally, I want to thank all our clients
for their custom and congratulate all the charities and
sections of the community who have been helped by our
endeavours.
While significant one-off investments have subdued this
year’s profit, they have also created a stronger platform for
growth. We are confident this investment, together with
our long-term relationships and core trustee capability,
will continue to provide very attractive growth prospects.

Superannuation
We’ve now built a competitive platform that capitalises
on our strengths in trusteeship, custodianship and funds
management and we will be presenting our new offer to
the market with added impetus.

Mick O’Brien
Managing Director
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Trustee & Wealth Services
HIGHLIGHTS

FUMAS up 3% to

Operating
Revenue ($m)

$8.7b

Revenue contribution

FOCUS FOR
fy17

$58.3m

Client centric model
New granting
program
Trustee for Partner
Indigenous and
compensation trusts

27.0

2012

27.8

2013

31.3

2014

60.0

2015

58.3

2016

13

NEW perpetual

charitable trusts
in FY16

36

NFP investment
mandate clients

4 new clients in FY16

Trustee & Wealth Services experienced good organic growth across the business with an increase
in Funds Under Management, Administration, Advice and Supervision (FUMAS) by 3% to $8.7b. A
significant achievement was the acquisition of 13 new perpetual charitable trusts – against an
annual benchmark of just over three.
Strong results in the superannuation business (see breakout below) was a result of emerging benefits
from the restructure and re-engineering of the superannuation offering. We continue to build the
not-for-profit investment mandates, and have renewed a focus on compensatory trust business,
leveraging our reputation and history as trusted advisers with custodianship of our clients’ wealth.
Strong organic growth is anticipated to continue through our estate planning, estate management,
Indigenous, community and personal trust services, wealth management and aged care and
advice services.

Superannuation upgraded to strengthen member preposition
We outsourced our superannuation administration so we can focus on our core strength as
Registrable Superannuation Entity (RSE). We’ll be pursuing prime position as the leading
preferred provider of RSE services as part of our ‘Trustee for Partner’ strategy. During the
outsourcing process, we took the opportunity to rationalise and simplify our product range,
creating substantially more competitive pricing.

Trustee for Partner business has grown
from 3 to 13 funds in two years
8
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$2.9b
FUM

Estate management
Equity Trustees is entrusted to act as an
impartial and independent executor
or trustee, ensuring that the wishes of clients are
fulfilled when the time comes for an estate to be
administered and distributed.

150+
Will

Estate
management
clients in FY16

Estate planning

Assisting individuals and families
manage the transfer of wealth between
generations through developing estate plans
including Wills, appointments of executors and
guardians, establishment of testamentary trusts,
powers of attorney, and reviews of superannuation
benefits nominations.

1,000+ 30,000+
Estate PLANS
Annually

Wills in our
safe keeping

Science, the arts and education
In mid 2014, Joseph Sambrook and Mary-Jane Gething established a private ancillary fund managed by
Equity Trustees. Mary-Jane is a third generation Equity Trustees client with her grandfather establishing the
original connection by engaging the Company to draft his Will.
Both now retired, Joe and Mary-Jane have had distinguished careers in the fields of biochemistry and
molecular biology.
The aim of the family foundation as it grows over time is to support people in three areas – science, the arts
and education. In science, it aims to support outstanding early career researchers, especially women; in the
arts, to foster young and emerging talent; and in education it aims to support vulnerable and disadvantaged
children overcome challenges.
“Ever since I’ve had any financial understanding I knew about
Equity Trustees. I watched my parents go through the wonderful supportive
service – transitioning from making all their own financial decisions to the
Company managing their investments and paying bills on their behalf,
to arranging an aged care placement for my father, and finally managing
their estates” said Mary-Jane.
“I have had my own account with the Company since the mid 70’s.
Equity Trustees helped me bid at my first house auction. Not long ago
our daughter, the fourth generation of my family with an Equity Trustees
connection, was assisted to buy and later sell her first apartment. I am looking
forward to her becoming actively involved in our philanthropic activities.”

Philanthropy
Helping individuals, families, charitable trusts, companies, and charities to grow and share their wealth
to support the community through establishing or managing a philanthropic fund to complement
existing financial objectives and estate planning. Equity Trustees acts as sole or joint trustee for more
than 450 charitable trusts and foundations, distributing more than $70m annually to charities and
not-for-profits.

ARA Endowment Fund

The Wicking Trust
The story of John and Janet Wicking is one of love,
partnership and devotion. They shared common
values, an understanding of hardship and adversity,
and a shared belief in generosity. They were active
philanthropists during their lifetimes. The JO & JR
Wicking Trust was established through John’s Will, but
it is named after both of them, and now distributes
around $4m in grants each year.
Equity Trustees is proud to be trustee of The Wicking Trust,
ensuring it remains true to the wishes of its founders: to
achieve enduring, positive impact in the areas of vision
impairment, care of the aged, problems associated with
ageing and Alzheimer’s disease. Following directions
provided in the Will of John Wicking, The Wicking Trust
is proud to have established partnerships with Vision
Australia and the O’Brien Foundation (formerly the
Microsurgery Foundation).
The goal of the Trust’s major granting program is to
improve the wellness and quality of life of older people
and people with Alzheimer’s disease in Australia.
An example is the role the Trust has played in the
establishment of what is now one of Australia’s three
biggest dementia research centres, the Wicking
Dementia Research and Education Centre at the
University of Tasmania. From its first grant in 2005, the
Trust has provided more than $4.7m in grants to support
the Centre, which now trains more than 1,500 people
a year in its Bachelor of Dementia Care course and
is running one of the most
successful MOOCs (Massive
Open
Online
Courses)
anywhere in the world.
A video about the Wickings,
and the work of the Trust, is
in development and due for
release in FY17.

Since it was established in 2009, the ARA Endowment
Fund has grown to more than half a million dollars
and has financially supported more than 40 Australian
charities. In 2015, ARA Group extended an invitation to
their suppliers, partners, friends and affiliates to donate
to the Fund, turning valuable business relationships
into invaluable social partnerships.
Australian company ARA Group is built on a strong
ethos of social responsibility, and so the establishment
of a philanthropic vehicle under the Equity Trustees
Charitable Foundation was a logical result of that ethos.
By establishing it under the Foundation, the Fund
automatically had tax deductible status and was able to
donate to registered charities. ARA staff could support
the Fund through a workplace giving program, and
play a part by nominating charities to receive support
from the Fund, providing a practical way to foster a
shared commitment to supporting not-for-profit work.
“We are excited for the year ahead… We will
be appointing a Chair of the philanthropic fund,
cultivating an advisory board, and appointing a
patron,” said Belinda Palamara, ARA Group Corporate
Project Manager.

Aged care advisory services

“

Highly reputable, trusted, and experienced advisory services giving individuals transitioning to aged
care – and their families – peace of mind through placement and property service advice, and aged
care financial advice focused on structuring finances to make care more affordable and protect a
family’s future. Equity Trustees services in this area include planning that takes into consideration
increasing support challenges that come with ageing.

We needed a bed, but ended up with a financial assessment, all sorts of personal advice,
understanding, and contact every step of the way. It was a very smooth operation.

10
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Asset Management
HIGHLIGHTS

EQT Flagship Fund

outperformed the
benchmark by

1.9% p.a.
gross of fees since inception
(July 2003)

$2,000,000

$125,000
gfc

$1,600,000

$100,000

$1,200,000

$75,000

$800,000

$50,000

$400,000

$25,000

$-

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Annual Income

$3.2b

In a volatile market, we maintained and grew income and capital for our clients. An
example is the Equity Trustees’ Charitable Equity Common Fund 103* shown below.

Capital Market Value

FUM

$0

Annual Income (RHS)

Capital Market Value (LHS)

Equity Trustees’ Asset Management capability continues to maintain its reputation for a steady
hand and cool analysis of the markets in the service of our private wealth clients, and managing
our internal funds. This is the team that manages the investment portfolios underpinning
more than 450 philanthropic trusts and foundations, and the investment mandates for more than
30 not-for-profit clients, ensuring important charitable work continues to be consistently funded year in,
year out.
*Illustration of a $1m investor in Equity Trustees’ Charitable Equity Common Fund 103 on 1 July 2004. Performance to 31 December each year. Income return includes
franking credits and is after management fees. Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance.

Outperforming the market
EQT Flagship Fund
Total Return %
120
80
40
0
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2014

2015

S&P/ASX 200

EQT Flagship Fund

EQT Australian Equity Income Fund
Total Return %
80
40
0
2011
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EQT Equity Income Fund
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2015

2016

S&P/ASX 200
Source: Bloomberg

Corporate Trustee Services
HIGHLIGHTS

FUS increase

FUS

18.7% $56.8b
FUS 2016 Breakdown

19.4%

n Australian equities

2016
$56.8b

n Global equities
n Fixed income
n Other

29.5%

Revenue up
2% to

$24.1m

8.6%

42.5%

RE to more

managers,
up 17% to 96

FOCUS FOR
fy17
AMIT benefits
Asian markets
Specialist
independent RE
Corporate trust roles

RE to more
funds,
up 7% to 212

In FY16 our Corporate Trustee Services (CTS) business made the strategic decision to exit the funds
distribution part of the business to ensure a singular focus on corporate fiduciary service.
Notwithstanding this the business grew by 2%, contributing $24.1m to revenue.
The number of funds for which we act as RE grew steadily – we now act as RE for 96 managers
(up 17%) and 212 funds (up 7%).
We initiated plans to expand into Asia to meet the growing demands of clients in our region given
the introduction of Attribution Managed Investment Trusts (AMITs) regime which enables greater
flexibility for clients. A focus in FY17 will be ensuring clients take advantage of this regime.
We led the debate on the introduction of AMITs, and continue to promote the benefits and peace of
mind of a specialist independent Responsible Entity for all funds.

Service Offerings
Trusted, independent partners to investment managers
CTS provides Responsible Entity (RE) and trustee services for Managed Investment Trusts (MITs) on
behalf of local and international investment managers and sponsors. Our services include RE/trustee
for registered or unregistered MITs and AMITs, and, for corporate trusts, we act as debenture and note
trustee, security trustee, trustee and custodian for direct property funds or MITs, and escrow agent. Our
services mean that our clients can focus on investment management, client retention and acquisition.
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Performance
FUS at 30 June 2016 ($b)
2012

21.1

2013

29.0

2014

35.6
47.9

2015

56.8

2016

Responsible Entity Business
2012

2013

2014
2015

139
58
158
65
185
76
199
82
212

2016
Funds

96
Managers

Video updates
This year CTS introduced regular vodcasts featuring industry experts providing guest updates on
the key issues impacting on fund managers and the funds management sector. The short video
updates in FY16 covered key features of the AMIT legislation, and announcements made in the
2016 Federal Budget.

Harvey Kalman
Executive General Manager,
Corporate Trustee Services

Attribution Managed
Investment Trust regime

2016 Federal Budget
and other recent
developments funds
and fund managers
need to know

April 2016

May 2016

Directors’
Report 2016
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016
The Directors of EQT Holdings Limited (Equity Trustees, or the Company) submit herewith the annual
financial report for the financial year ended 30 June 2016. In order to comply with the provisions of the
Corporations Act 2001, the Directors’ Report is as follows.

Board of Directors
The Directors of the Company during or since the end of the financial year are:

Current Board Members

From left to right: Kevin Eley, Michael (Mick) O’Brien, Anne O’Donnell, JA (Tony) Killen OAM, The Hon Jeffrey Kennett AC, Alice Williams, D. Glenn Sedgwick.

JA (Tony) Killen OAM
Chairman and Independent Director

Michael (Mick) J O’Brien
Managing Director

BA, FAICD, FAIM

Appointed Director in September
Chairman on 30 August 2007.

FIAA, CFA, GAICD

2002

and

Mr Killen is a former Group Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer of AXA Asia Pacific Holdings Ltd, having had a 36 year career
with the National Mutual/AXA group. He was Chair of Australia’s
largest not-for-profit health services provider – Sisters of Charity
Health Service Ltd, Chair of Sisters of Charity Community Care Ltd and
non-executive director of listed company, IRESS Market Technology Ltd.
Mr Killen is currently Captain of Victoria Golf Club Limited and a
Finance Councillor at the Bishops Commission for Administration
and Information, Australian Catholic Bishops Conference. In 2011,
Mr Killen was awarded the Medal of the Order of Australia.
Mr Killen was Chair of Equity Trustees’ Board Risk Committee to
May 2016.
In addition to more than 20 years’ experience in the management of
trustee companies, Mr Killen brings to the Board a deep knowledge
of the financial services industry and governance expertise.
Listed company directorships held during the past three
financial years:
• Chair of Templeton Global Growth Fund Ltd (from October 2012
to the present)
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Appointed Director on 28 July 2014, Executive
Director on 28 April 2016, and Managing Director
on 1 July 2016.
Mr O’Brien is a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of Australia, and
holds the Chartered Financial Analyst designation.
Mr O’Brien was formerly CEO and director of Invesco Australia
Limited, director of Alliance Capital Management Australia and Chief
Investment Officer of AXA Australia and New Zealand, where he
was also a director of all AXA’s Responsible Entities and Regulated
Superannuation Entities.
With a career spanning over 30 years in both retail and institutional
markets, Mr O’Brien brings to the Board broad wealth management
experience in superannuation, investment management, insurance,
and advice.
Mr O’Brien was a member of the Audit & Compliance Committee and
Chair of the Board Investment Committee until May 2016. He is a
member of the Board Risk Committee.
Listed company directorships held during the past three
financial years:
• Templeton Global Growth Fund Limited (from August 2014 to the
present and currently on leave)

Alice JM Williams
Independent Director

Anne M O’Donnell
Independent Director

BCom, FCPA, FAICD, ASFA AIF, CFA

BA (Bkg & Fin), MBA, FAICD, SF Fin

Appointed Director in September 2007.
Ms Williams has over 30 years’ senior management and Board
experience in the corporate, investment banking and government
sectors. She was formerly a director of Australian Accounting
Standards Board, State Trustees, NM Rothschild and Sons (Australia)
Limited, Director of Strategy and Planning for Ansett Australia
Holdings Limited, Victorian Funds Management Corporation and a
Vice President at JP Morgan Australia.
As an adviser for major Australian and international corporations,
Ms Williams brings to the Board experience in capital markets, human
resources, and equity fundraising.
Ms Williams was a member of the Board Investment Committee
and of the Board Risk Committee until May 2016. She is a member
of the Equity Trustees Limited Compliance Committee (a subsidiary
committee) and is Chair of the Remuneration, Human Resources and
Nominations Committee.
In addition to the directorships held in the companies listed below,
Ms Williams is a non-executive director on a range of public,
government and private boards including Guild Group Holdings
Limited, Port of Melbourne Corporation, Defence Health, Barristers
Chambers Limited, Victorian Funds Management Corporation, and
the Foreign Investment Review Board.
Listed company directorships held during the past three
financial years:
• Djerriwarrh Investments Limited (from May 2010 to the present)
• Cooper Energy Limited (from August 2013 to the present)

The Hon Jeffrey G Kennett AC
Independent Director
Hon DBus (Ballarat), Hon LL D (Deakin)

Appointed Director in September 2008.
Mr Kennett was an Officer in the Royal Australian Regiment, serving
at home and overseas. He was a Member of the Victorian Parliament
for 23 years, Premier of the State from 1992 to 1999, and awarded the
Companion of the Order of Australia in 2005.
Mr Kennett is currently Chair of beyondblue, the national depression
initiative, and Chair of The Torch, a program assisting incarcerated
Indigenous men and women. In addition, he is Chair of Open
Windows Australia Proprietary Limited, Chair of CT Management
Group Pty Ltd, Chair of Amtek Corporation Pty Ltd and Chair of
LEDified Lighting Corporation Pty Ltd.
He is associated with many community organisations, including The
Royal District Nursing Service and Sovereign Hill Ballarat.
Mr Kennett brings to the Board experience in client and community
relations, and government.
Mr Kennett is a member of the Remuneration, Human Resources and
Nomination Committee, was a member of the Board Risk Committee
to May 2016, and was a member of the Board Audit Committee
between May 2016 and August 2016.
Listed company directorships held during the past three
financial years:
• Seven West Media Limited (from June 2015 to the present)
• Primary Opinion Limited (from April 2004 to November 2015)

Appointed Director in September 2010.
Ms O’Donnell has some 35 years’ experience in the finance sector and
is an experienced executive and non-executive director in the listed,
not-for-profit and mutual sectors.
Ms O’Donnell is a director of Community CPS Australia Ltd (trading as
Beyond Bank Australia), Eastwoods Pty Ltd and The Winston Churchill
Memorial Trust. In addition, she is an external member of the UBS
Global Asset Management (Australia) Ltd Compliance Committee,
external Chair of the IP Australia Audit Committee, a member of each
of the Investment, Audit & Risk Committee and the Nominations and
Remuneration Committee of the Winston Churchill Memorial Trust,
and an external member of the Nominations Committee of Goodwin
Aged Care Services Ltd.
A former Managing Director of Australian Ethical Investment Ltd,
Ms O’Donnell was also formerly a director of the Financial Services
Council, The Centre for Australian Ethical Research Pty Ltd, the ANZ
Staff Superannuation Fund, The Grain Growers Association Ltd, and
the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Ms O’Donnell brings to
the Board extensive knowledge of the wealth management industry.
Ms O’Donnell is Chair of the Equity Trustees Limited Compliance
Committee (a subsidiary committee) and a member of the
Company’s Board Audit Committee, Board Risk Committee and the
Remuneration, Human Resources and Nominations Committee.

Kevin J Eley
Independent Director
CA, F FIN, FAICD

Appointed Director in November 2011.
Mr Eley is a Chartered Accountant with experience in management,
finance and investment. He was Chief Executive Officer for 20 years of
listed diversified investment company HGL Limited, where he remains
as a non-executive director. Previously he worked in Australia and
overseas for a major international accounting firm and in the corporate
finance divisions of a local and international investment bank.
Mr Eley brings to the Board extensive experience in the areas of
managing businesses, strategic development, finance and investment.
Mr Eley is Chair of the Board Audit Committee and Chair of the Board
Risk Committee since May 2016.
Listed company directorships held during the past three
financial years:
• Chair of Hunter Hall International Limited (Director from October
2012 and Chair from May 2016 to the present)
• HGL Limited (from October 2010 to the present)
• Milton Corporation Limited (from November 2011 to the present)
• PO Valley Energy Limited (from June 2012 to April 2016)
• Kresta Holdings Limited (from April 2011 to February 2014)

D. Glenn Sedgwick
Independent Director
BCom, FAICD, FCA

Appointed Director on 8 August 2016.
Mr Sedgwick has more than 30 years’ experience as a consultant to
listed and unlisted Australian, Chinese and other Asian enterprises
across financial services, and information technology. A former
partner in Accenture (then Arthur Andersen & Co.), he was previously
Managing Director of Accenture’s Asia Pacific Insurance and Wealth
Management business.
Mr Sedgwick is Chair of Australian Tourist Park Management (ATPM),
a director of Australian Life Insurance Group (ALI), a Councillor of
Queens College (University of Melbourne), and a member of the
Foundation Committee of the Melbourne Symphony Orchestra.
With strengths in financial reporting and risk management,
Mr Sedgwick also brings to the Board extensive knowledge in
strategy development.
Mr Sedgwick is a member of the Board Audit Committee and Board
Risk Committee effective 8 August 2016.
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Former Board Members
Robin BO Burns
Managing Director

David F Groves
Independent Director

DipAcc, FAICD

BCom, MCom, CA, FAICD

Managing Director between March 2010 and
1 July 2016.
Before joining Equity Trustees Mr Burns was, from 2002, Chief
Executive Officer of Equipsuper Pty Ltd, the trustee company for
the Equipsuper multi-employer superannuation fund. Mr Burns
retired as a non-executive director of the Financial Services
Council in April 2016.
Mr Burns previously worked for AXA Asia Pacific, where he
held the positions of General Manager, Corporate Affairs and
Chief Executive, Risk Insurance and for the stockbroking firm
Prudential-Bache Securities (Australia), where he was Managing
Director, having joined the firm as Chief Financial Officer.
Mr Burns was a member of the Board Investment Committee until
April 2016.

Director from November 2000 and Deputy Chair
from December 2007 until 14 December 2015.
Mr Groves is a director of Pipers Brook Vineyard Pty Ltd and Tasman
Sea Salt Pty Ltd. Since March 2015, he has been a member of the
Australian Rugby Foundation Advisory Board.
Mr Groves is a former director of Tassal Group Limited, GrainCorp
Limited, Mason Stewart Publishing, Camelot Resources NL and a
former executive with Macquarie Bank Limited and its antecedent,
Hill Samuel Australia.
He was a member of the Audit & Compliance Committee, the
Remuneration, Human Resources and Nominations Committee,
the Board Investment Committee, and the Board Risk Committee
until his retirement.
Listed company directorships held during the past three financial
years to date of retirement from the Company:
• BCD Resources NL (from August 2012 to January 2015)

Company Secretaries
Carmen Odette Lunderstedt

Martin Geoffory Walsh

BCom, Grad Cert Fin Plan, AGIA

BBus, MBA, GAICD

Ms Lunderstedt was appointed Company Secretary
on 29 January 2016. With a background in corporate
governance, compliance and risk management, Ms
Lunderstedt has held a number of previous company secretary
roles in unlisted and listed companies. In addition to being an
Associate of the Governance Institute of Australia, Ms Lunderstedt
holds a BCom (Corporate Administration and Management) and
Graduate Certificate in Financial Planning.
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Mr Walsh was appointed joint Company Secretary
on 29 January 2016. Mr Walsh joined Equity Trustees
in April 2015 and has more than 40 years’ experience
in the financial services sector as a leader and innovator in credit
and operational risk, internal audit, regulatory compliance and
governance. He previously held senior executive positions at GE
Capital, ANZ, CBA, Standard Chartered Bank and Citic Kawah Bank
(Hong Kong), and has extensive experience dealing with APRA,
The Federal Reserve of New York, Hong Kong Monetary Authority
and the Monetary Authority of Singapore.

Corporate reorganisation
Effective 14 December 2015, Equity Trustees Limited (the former parent entity of the Group) undertook a corporate
reorganisation by implementing a Scheme of Arrangement with its shareholders. From this date, EQT Holdings Limited
became the new parent entity of Equity Trustees Limited and the Group, and its shares are listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange (ASX: EQT).

Directors’ meetings
The following table sets out the number of Directors’ meetings (including meetings of Committees of Directors)
held during the financial year and the number of meetings attended by each Director (while they were a Director or
committee member).

Directors
Current
Directors

Board
A

B

Board
Committee*
A

Remuneration,
Human
Resouces,
Nomination
Committee

B

A

B

Board Audit
Committee
A

B

Board Risk
Committee
A

B

Board
Investment
Committee
A

B

JA Killen

21

21

2

2

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

4

4

n/a

n/a

KJ Eley

21

21

5

5

n/a

n/a

10

10

5

4

n/a

n/a

JG Kennett

21

21

4

4

6

6

1

1

4

4

n/a

n/a

MJ O’Brien

21

21

6

6

n/a

n/a

9

9

5

5

3

3

AM O’Donnell

21

21

4

4

6

6

10

10

5

5

n/a

n/a

AJM Williams
Former
Directors

21

18

4

4

6

6

n/a

n/a

4

4

3

3

A

B

A

B

A

B

A

B

A

B

A

B

RBO Burns

21

14

6

6

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

3

3

DF Groves

7

5

2

2

4

4

6

6

3

2

2

2

A = Meetings eligible to attend

B = Meetings attended

n/a = Not applicable

Mr DG Sedgwick was appointed to the Company’s Board and appointed as a member of the Board Audit Committee and Board Risk Committee
on 8 August 2016.
Mr Burns was on approved leave of absence for five of the Board’s meetings.
*Board Committee meetings are constituted by at least any two Directors acting pursuant to the authority of the full Board.

Directors’ shareholding
The following table sets out each Director’s relevant interest in shares as at the date of this report. All shares are
fully paid ordinary shares.
Director
KJ Eley

Number of shares
112,891

JG Kennett

45,484

JA (Tony) Killen

50,506

MJ O’Brien

11,000

AM O’Donnell

9,647

AJM Williams

4,568

DG Sedgwick

Nil

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group during the course of the financial year were trustee and responsible entity
services, philanthropic and estate management services, portfolio management, funds management, investment
administration and custody services, executor services and financial planning.
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Operating and Financial
Review of the Group
Strategy
Equity Trustees aims to be Australia’s leading independent provider of
...the last two years has
trustee services.
positioned the Company
Equity Trustees has steadily and assuredly grown its business since
1888, and the acquisition and subsequent successful integration of
to capitalise on the
Equity Trustees Wealth Services Limited (ETWSL – formerly known as
increasing
range
of
ANZ Trustees) over the last two years has positioned the Company to
capitalise on the increasing range of opportunities in the sector.
opportunities...
Corporate Trustee Services (CTS) provides a range of Responsible Entity
(RE) and trustee services for managed investment trusts on behalf of local and international fund managers and
sponsors, as well as specialised trustee services for corporates and structured multi-party transactions.
Trustee & Wealth Services (TWS) provides a range of Private Client, Philanthropic and Superannuation services
including estate planning and management; charitable, compensation, Indigenous and personal trust services; wealth
management and aged care advice and placement.

Group financial performance
The following table summarises the Group’s performance in FY15 and FY16.
Financial summary

FY16
$’000

FY15
$’000

FY16 v FY15
$’000

FY16 v FY15
%

Operating revenue

83,696

84,857

(1,161)

(1.4)%

Operating expenses

56,958

56,682

276

0.5%

Operating Profit Before Tax (OPBT)

26,738

28,175

(1,437)

(5.1)%

Operating margin (before tax) (%)

31.9%

33.2%

Operating Profit After Tax (OPAT)

18,765

19,832

(1,067)

(5.4)%

5,477

2,873

2,604

90.6%

13,288

16,959

(3,671)

(21.6)%

Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) on OPAT (cents)

93.9

101.9

(8.1)

(7.9)%

Diluted EPS on NPAT (cents)

66.5

87.2

(20.7)

(23.7)%

68

94

(26)

(27.7)%

7.8%

8.2%

Non-operating items (net of tax)

1

Net Profit After Tax (NPAT)
2

Dividends (cps)
Return on equity on OPAT (%)

(1.3)%

0.4%

1 The assessment of non-operating items was determined by management and regarded as non-recurring in nature. Effective tax rate is 30%.
2 Diluted EPS is calculated using the weighted average number of shares and potential ordinary shares on issue of 19,990,973 for FY16
(FY15: 19,457,450).
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Revenue

Operating expenses

The main drivers of revenue are Funds Under
Total operating expenses in FY16 were $57.0m, slightly
Management, Administration, Advice and Supervision
higher (0.5%) than $56.7m in FY15. This reasonably
(FUMAS). FUMAS are influenced by existing client inflows
stable expense outcome was achieved whilst still making
and outflows, new client inflows and to varying extents
strategic additional ongoing investment in front-line
movement in the financial markets. In CTS, which primarily
capability, systems and business assurance resources
has Funds Under Supervision (FUS), these are impacted
to support higher organic growth. These investments
by global equity and fixed interest market movements
were offset by reduced costs from the CTS exit from
along with the value of the A$. In TWS, which has funds
funds distribution, outsourcing of TWS superannuation
in all categories, FUMAS are principally impacted by the
administration and reduced staff incentives (reflecting
level of the Australian equity markets.
the impact of the results on all stakeholders).
The headline 1.4% reduction in revenues reflects the
Non-operating expenses
CTS exit from funds distribution, the TWS transition
Non-operating expenses before tax in FY16 were
to implementing a more competitive superannuation
$7.8m, up substantially from $4.0m in FY15. The
product and pricing during the financial year, and average
non-operating expenses in FY15 were largely associated
Australian equity markets were significantly lower in FY16
with the integration of the acquisition of ETWSL, which
compared with FY15. The
was successfully completed on time and budget. The
impact of these factors
In CTS, strong new
one-off costs in FY16 are principally associated with three
masked good organic
key strategic projects outlined below, along with the
business
generation
revenue growth across
redundancy costs.
underpinned
an
the business.
18.7% increase in
FY16
FY15
In CTS, strong new
FUS
while
in
TWS
business
generation
Non-operating items
$’000
$’000
FUMAS grew by 3%,
underpinned an 18.7%
Corporate Restructure
899
increase in FUS while
reflecting particularly
Superannuation Upgrade
2,596
in TWS FUMAS grew
good growth in
by
3%,
reflecting
Business Assurance (enhancing
1,951
superannuation.
particularly good growth
risk and regulatory management)
in superannuation.
Other
915
192
In TWS for FY16, approximately 50-60% of FUMAS
Redundancy
1,464
was exposed to equity market movements. The most
ETWSL integration/transition cost
3,825
relevant index is the S&P/ASX 200 Price Index, which
was on average down 7% in FY16 compared to the FY15
Total non-operating items
7,825
4,017
average. Based on the level of the S&P/ASX 200 at the
The Corporate Restructure project involved the
end of June 2016, a 1% movement in the S&P/ASX 200
establishment of a new, non-operating holding company
impacts annualised TWS revenue by approximately
for the Group via a Scheme of Arrangement. In December
$0.3m to $0.4m.
2015, shareholders approved
CTS revenues are exposed
the establishment of EQT
to global equity and currency
...provide greater regulatory capital
Holdings Limited as the
markets. However, this is
efficiency, improved funding flexibility and
new ASX listed parent entity
moderated to a significant
along with the exchange
a
more
focused
governance
model.
extent by the diversity of
of Equity Trustee Limited
exposures and the impact
shares on a one-for-one
of hedging across the FUS.
basis. The purpose of this restructure was to provide
Please note this revenue sensitivity is a guide only and
greater regulatory capital efficiency, improved funding
may vary due to a number of factors including, but not
flexibility and a more focused governance model.
limited to, changing asset allocations, the market relative
The Superannuation Upgrade project involved
performance of FUMAS, inflows and outflows, and
the outsourcing of superannuation administration,
distributions and changes in pricing policy.
consolidation of superannuation funds and development
and implementation of a substantially more competitive
product offering. This project was successfully completed
as planned in FY16.
The Business Assurance project involves upgrading
and enhancing our risk management and compliance
framework and systems, and is expected to be completed
by December 2016. This will ensure we have incorporated
all regulatory requirements and developed a modern,
contemporary risk management capability that can
support Equity Trustees’ growth aspirations.
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Business Unit performance summary
Corporate Trustee Services
Key Products and Services
• Responsible Entity services for managed funds on
behalf of local and international managers and
sponsors
• Corporate Trustee services for structured products
and security and escrow arrangements
The CTS business has maintained its consistent track
record of strong organic growth with FUS up 18.7% in
FY16. New fund manager clients increased by 17%, from
82 to 96, and the number of new funds was up 7%, from
199 to 212. Revenue for FY16 was up 1.7% to $24.1m. This
reflected particularly strong organic growth, offset by
the CTS exit from funds distribution in the middle of the
financial year. If not for the loss of distribution revenue
CTS would have achieved double-digit revenue growth.
The strategic decision by CTS to exit funds distribution
was made to focus efforts purely on CTS’ core fiduciary
activities and following the loss of a key client who
decided to take the function in-house.
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Trustee & Wealth Services
The provision of:
• Superannuation and Portfolio services to
superannuation funds
• Philanthropy services including perpetual
charitable trusts, living donors and investment
management for not-for-profit organisations
• Wealth and Asset Management advice and
services including for aged care
• Estate Planning advice and the management of
deceased estates
• Trustee administration and services including
personal, compensation and Indigenous trusts,
and property
Equity Trustees is a leader in the provision of philanthropic,
trust and estate services. Good organic growth momentum
is evident across the business and, in general, the
number of new clients has been increasing across Estates
and Trusts, Advice, Philanthropy and Superannuation
Trusteeship. In particular, 13 new perpetual charitable
trusts were established in FY16 compared with the
long-term average of three to four per annum. TWS
FUMAS was up 3% to $8.7b including strong growth in
superannuation funds under management in the face of
declining markets.
The upgrade of the superannuation business was a
significant and complex project and vital to the ongoing
success of this business. It incorporated outsourcing
superannuation
administration,
consolidation
of
superannuation fund investment options, rationalisation
and simplification of products, and implementing
more competitive pricing. While the earnings
reduction from outsourcing administration and more
competitive pricing is significant, the business is now
more sustainable and has a much stronger platform for
growth. A “Trustee for Partner” growth strategy has been
implemented, focusing on selected superannuation
promoters and other institutions where trusteeship
is not core. Equity Trustees seeks to be the preferred
independent supplier of Registrable Superannuation
Entity (RSE) trust services and has successfully grown the
Trustee for Partner business from 3 funds to 13 funds over
the last two years.

Group financial position

Capital management

Summary consolidated Balance Sheet

Equity Trustees over-arching capital management
objectives are to:
• Maximise returns to shareholders over the
medium term
• Comply with the Group’s risk appetite and regulatory
requirements
• Support strategic goals
• Withstand adverse events
• Provide flexibility for contingencies and opportunities
Equity Trustees has a prudent balance sheet with low
gearing. The Group regularly reviews funding options to
ensure it is optimising both the use and mix of its capital
to achieve its capital management objectives.
In December 2015, shareholders approved the
establishment of a new holding company, EQT Holdings
Limited, to be the new parent and ASX listed entity by way
of a Scheme of Arrangement. This has enabled improved
regulatory capital efficiency, enhanced borrowing
flexibility and more effective governance arrangements.
In addition, the Group has restructured its Superannuation
business to achieve greater efficiency by consolidating
the business in one entity and enabling reduction to one
Registrable Superannuation Entity licence.
For the 2016 financial year, ASIC granted relief from
meeting the new minimum Net Tangible Assets (NTA)
requirements for AFSL regulatory purposes for the
period 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016. The minimum level
of NTA required during this period was $32m, which the
Group comfortably exceeded. Effective from 1 July 2016,
AFSL licenced entities are subject to the individual
AFSL regulatory requirements and as at 1 July 2016, the
minimum combined capital required by the AFSL licenced
entities was approximately $43m, which is required to
be held 50% in cash or cash equivalents and 100% in
liquid assets. This compares with available regulatory
capital (NTA calculated in accordance with regulatory
requirements) held of $53.3m and available resources
of $68.5m as at 30 June 2016, comprised of $56.5m of
liquid assets and $12m of undrawn corporate debt
facility. A further phase of license rationalisation, along
with entity reorganisation, is expected to lead to reduced
regulatory capital requirements in the period ahead.
The Dividend Reinvestment Plan will continue to operate
for the 2016 final dividend, and a 1.25% discount will
apply. The 2016 final dividend will be fully franked and
payable on 14 October 2016.

FY16
$’000

FY15
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

48,723

24,954

Trade receivables and accrued
income

16,832

16,289

Goodwill and intangible assets

185,470

188,930

6,807

22,061

257,832

252,234

Trade payables and other liabilities

7,048

9,101

Borrowings

8,000

-

Other non-current liabilities

2,030

2,106

17,078

11,207

240,754

241,027

231,780

227,652

832

2,126

8,142

11,249

240,754

241,027

As at 30 June
Assets

Investments and other assets
Total Assets
Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Equity
Issued capital
Reserves
Retained earnings
Total Equity

Balance Sheet analysis
• Cash and cash equivalents – increased from $25.0m
to $48.7m primarily due to the restructure of the
investment holdings that support the regulatory
capital requirements ($15.5m) and draw down of loan
facility ($8.0m).
• Goodwill and intangible assets – made up of
Management Rights, Goodwill acquired and
Computer Software. There were no business
acquisitions in FY16.
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Cash Flow

Cash Flow analysis
FY16
$’000

FY15
$’000

Receipts from customers

94,590

94,425

Payment to suppliers and
employees

(75,456)

(73,771)

Operating cash flow before
income tax

19,134

20,654

Income tax paid

(7,135)

(5,348)

Net cash from operating activities

11,999

15,306

Net cash provided by/(used in)
investing activities

15,213

(154,133)

Net cash (used in)/provided by
financing activities

(3,443)

(6,456)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalent

23,769

(145,283)

For year ended 30 June
Cash from operating activities

• Net cash from operating cash flow before income tax
is consistent year on year
• No payment for business acquisitions in FY16
compared to $145.4m made to acquire ETWSL in
FY15
• The cash and cash equivalents increased by $23.8m
in FY16 compared to a decrease of $145.3m in FY15
• $12.5m increase in proceeds from sale of investments
into cash and cash equivalents as part of restructure
of investment holdings
• $8.0m increase in borrowings to improve capital
efficiency

Debt
During the year, the Company established a $20m
banking facility with ANZ Bank to provide additional
capital flexibility. As at 30 June 2016, $8m of this facility
was drawn.
Financial covenants associated with the unsecured debt
facility include minimum tangible net worth, leverage
ratio and interest cover. During FY16, the Group was in
compliance with all its debt covenants.

Shareholder returns and dividends
In determining the 2016 final dividend, the Board had regard to the significant one-off non-operating costs, solid
operating performance, likely future capital needs and prospective trading conditions and performance. The Board
approved a fully franked final dividend of 34 cents per share (cps), consistent with the interim dividend and bringing
the total FY16 dividend to 68cps. This represents a dividend payout ratio of 71.9% of OPAT and 102.3% of NPAT.
Shareholder returns

FY16

FY15

FY16
V FY15
%

Diluted EPS on OPAT (cps)

93.9

101.9

(7.9)%

Diluted EPS on NPAT (cps)

66.5

87.2

(23.7)%

Annualised Return on average Equity (ROE) on OPAT (%)

7.8%

8.2%

(0.4)%

Annualised ROE on NPAT (%)

5.5%

7.0%

(1.5)%

FY16

FY15

FY16
V FY15
%

13,541

18,318

(26.1)%

68

94

(27.7)%

102.3%

107.8%

(5.5)%

101.9%

108.0%

(6.1)%

For the period
1

Dividends

For the period
Fully franked dividends paid/payable ($’000)
Fully franked dividends per ordinary share (cps)
Dividend payout ratio

2

Dividends paid/payable as a proportion of NPAT

3

1 Diluted EPS is calculated using the weighted average number of ordinary and potential ordinary shares on issue.
2 Dividend payout ratio is calculated using dividend(s) paid or resolved to be paid for the relevant period divided by the diluted EPS.
3 Based on ordinary fully paid shares at the end of each reporting period.
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Dividends
In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2015:
i.	An interim dividend of 46cps, fully franked, was paid to holders of fully paid ordinary shares on 16 April 2015.
ii.	Subsequent to 30 June 2015, the Directors declared a final dividend of 48cps, fully franked, payable to holders of
fully paid ordinary shares on 16 October 2015.
In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2016:
i.	An interim dividend of 34cps, fully franked, was paid to holders of fully paid ordinary shares on 15 April 2016.
ii.	A final dividend of 34cps, fully franked, will be paid to holders of fully paid ordinary shares on 14 October 2016.

Risk management
The Group’s approach to risk management is outlined in the Group Risk Management Framework (RMF) which
describes the overarching risk principles, commitment and systems established to ensure that the Group manage its
risks appropriately. The RMF is a key component of the Governance hierarchy, which also includes the Governance
Management Framework (GMF) and the Compliance Management Framework (CMF) and is aligned with the Group’s
Risk Appetite Statement.
The RMF comprises the totality of the systems, processes, structures, policies and people involved in identifying,
assessing, mitigating and monitoring risks. The RMF supports the Board and management in obtaining an appropriate
view of the overall risk profile. The Group has a dedicated Enterprise Risk function, led by the Chief Risk Officer, which
has day-to-day responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of the Group’s RMF.
The RMF is underpinned by a “Three Lines of Assurance” model that drives accountability and responsibility for
governance, risk management and compliance. The Three Lines of Assurance model comprises the Committees
and Boards that govern the Group; First Line (business operations), Second Line (Enterprise Risk) and Third Line
(Internal Audit).
The following table outlines the key business risks faced by the Group.
Risk Category

Description

Strategic

The risk of loss arising from the Company’s strategic and business plans and the changing
external business environment.

Operational

The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or external events. Under the RMF, this category also includes insurance risk.

Financial

The risk associated with the failure to effectively manage the Company’s financial
resources, including, but not limited to, revenue, expenses, capital and liquidity.

People

The risk arising from the failure to attract, motivate and retain key staff that have the skills
to achieve the Company’s goals; and act ethically, with integrity and transparency.

Outsourcing

The risk of loss arising from the outsourcing of the Company’s core and non-core functions
to related and/or external entities.

Investment

The risk of loss arising from the failure to effectively manage and monitor investment strategy
and the investment process for clients. This risk includes investment governance risk.

Governance
The risk arising from a lack of governance and non-compliance with laws, regulations,
and Compliance standards, and internal policies and procedures.

EQT Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

25

Outlook

Events subsequent to Balance date

As a large, modern, resource rich country with a relatively
small population situated in the economically vibrant
Asia-Pacific region, Australia’s long-term economic
prospects are attractive. Within this context the
long-term structural dynamics of an aging demographic,
combined with Government mandated superannuation
and unprecedented intergenerational wealth transfer
in the next few decades, represent a substantial market
opportunity for Equity Trustees.
Three key initiatives undertaken in 2016, creating a new
holding company, the Superannuation Upgrade, and
the Business Assurance project, have been important
investments in developing a strong foundation for growth.
The first two of these projects are complete and the third
is on track and planned to finish in December 2016. These
initiatives place Equity Trustees in a good position to
take advantage of an expanding range of opportunities
in the period ahead.
While the full year impacts of the CTS exit from
funds distribution and the TWS restructuring of the
superannuation business will ameliorate short-term
earnings, there are encouraging signs of good organic
growth momentum in both CTS and TWS at this early
stage of FY17. Together with initiatives to improve
productivity and an expected significant reduction in
non-operational costs, further restructuring to improve
capital efficiency and assuming no material negative
market changes, the outlook for a materially improved
bottom-line financial performance in the year ahead and
beyond looks promising.

There has not been any matter or circumstance that
has arisen since the end of the financial year that has
significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the
operations of the Group, the results of those operations
or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.
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Changes in the state of affairs
During the financial year there was no significant change
in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity other than
previously referred to in this report.

Future developments
Apart from matters disclosed elsewhere in this report,
disclosure of information regarding likely developments
in the operations of the Group in future financial years, and
the expected results of those operations, is likely to result
in unreasonable prejudice to the Group. Accordingly, this
information has not been disclosed in this report.

Remuneration Report
Key Management Personnel
Information regarding the remuneration of Key
Management Personnel (KMP) is set out below.
KMP includes all Directors of the consolidated entity
and the executive managers who have authority and
responsibility for the planning, directing and controlling
of activities of the consolidated entity. Unless otherwise
stated, all references to executives in this remuneration
report are references to executives who are KMP. During
the year, the retirement of Mr R Burns was announced
and as a result there was a transitional period during
which Mr R Burns remained the Managing Director
of the consolidated entity and Mr M O’Brien was the
Executive Director of the consolidated entity. Unless
otherwise stated, references in this remuneration report to
the Managing Director refer to Mr R Burns and references
to the Executive Director refer to Mr M O’Brien.
The names of Directors of the consolidated entity during
and since the end of the financial year are provided
on pages 16 to 18. The names of executives of the
consolidated entity during and since the end of the
financial year are listed in the executive remuneration
table in the Remuneration of Directors and executives
section of the remuneration report.

Remuneration Policy
Unless otherwise stated, in this section reference to
executive remuneration includes remuneration for KMP
executives, the Managing Director and the Executive
Director. Non-executive directors do not receive any
performance based incentives. The Board’s policy on
executive remuneration is designed to attract and retain
high calibre staff and to reward executives for achieving
financial and other business goals, which in turn, increases
shareholder wealth.
To assist in performing its duties and making
recommendations to the Board, the Remuneration,
Human Resources and Nominations Committee
(Remuneration Committee) seeks independent advice
from external consultants on various remuneration
related matters. The Remuneration Committee follows
protocols regarding the engagement and use of external
remuneration consultants to ensure compliance with the
relevant executive remuneration legislation.

Remuneration strategy
Align with EQT Holdings Limited’s performance

• Assess rewards against short and long-term
company targets
• Make short and long-term components of
remuneration ‘at risk’
• Align rewards to building shareholder value
Attract and retain high calibre executives

• Be market competitive with rewards and
remuneration
• Continually review strategy and benchmark
remuneration
Remuneration components
Fixed Total Employment Costs (TEC)
Based on employee’s level of responsibility, experience,
skills and performance. Includes:
• Salary: fixed annual remuneration
• Non-monetary: eligible salary sacrifice items and
Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT)
• Post-employment:
Charge (SGC)

Superannuation

Guarantee

Short-Term Incentives (STI)
Annual ‘at risk’ component based on company, business
unit and individual performance.
• Maximum: The maximum opportunity for executives
is in the range of 40% to 60%
• Settlement: Payment as cash through payroll system
Long-Term Incentive (LTI)
• Delivered in equity (shares) based on prescribed
performance hurdles
–– Range: 40% to 60% of TEC
• Remuneration Committee to consider and
recommend LTI participation to the Board

Executive remuneration structure

• Applied over three year period

The executive remuneration structure comprises fixed
salary and short and long-term variable components.
The table below illustrates the remuneration strategy and
approach. Executive remuneration package components
are reviewed and structured annually to focus individuals
on, and to reward achievement of, specific measures and
targets with both short and medium-term horizons.

• Aligned to long-term growth strategy
–– Total Shareholder Return (TSR) for Managing
Director
»» 50% vesting when 50th percentile achieved
»» 100% vesting when 75th percentile achieved
–– Earnings Per Share (EPS) for all participants
(refer to Executive Performance Share Plan
section for definition of EPS for LTI purposes)
»» 25% vesting when 5% p.a. growth in EPS
achieved over three years
»» 100% vesting when 15% p.a. growth in EPS
achieved over three years
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Group executives continue to have a significant portion of their remuneration linked to performance and at risk. This
is shown in the table below which shows the remuneration mix if maximum variable elements are achieved for the
Managing Director, Executive Director and the executives.
46%

Managing Director

62.5%

Executive Director

46% – 56%

Group Executives
Fixed (cash)

27%

STI (cash)

37.5%
22% – 27%

22% – 27%

LTI (equity)

As outlined in the section Transitional Arrangements
– Mr R Burns, Managing Director and Mr M O’Brien
Executive Director, Mr M O’Brien’s remuneration
arrangements, including remuneration mix for the year
ended 30 June 2016, was a transitional arrangement
prior to his appointment as Managing Director on
1 July 2016. His remuneration mix following his
permanent appointment is the same as shown above for
the Managing Director role.

Details of executive remuneration incentive plans
Short-term performance incentives
These are calculated by reference to agreed key
performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2016.
These include Group and Business Unit profitability,
expense control, and other performance criteria specific
to the respective executive’s responsibilities. These
performance criteria were chosen so as to provide a
suitable incentive for executive performance for the
benefit of shareholders and other stakeholders. The
measurement of criteria is assessed by adopting a
balanced scorecard approach, with each criterion given
a threshold representing the minimum incentive and a
stretch threshold representing an excellent achievement,
for which the maximum incentive is paid. In all cases, the
Remuneration Committee confirms the appropriateness
of the criteria, appropriate thresholds and, at the
conclusion of the measurement period, confirms the
level of achievement. Short-term incentives are paid in
cash through the payroll system.
Long-term performance incentives
These are offered to executives via the grant of LTI
awards (Awards) which confer the right to acquire shares
at no cost, subject to meeting prescribed performance
hurdles. The accounting cost of long-term performance
incentives is spread over the measurement (vesting)
period. For the year ended 30 June 2016, there was
an expense reversal of $480,619 due to write back of
accounting cost (2015: $840,588 expense incurred). The
maximum share-based long-term performance incentive
for executives is in the range of 40% to 60% of TEC.
Further details regarding the long-term incentive scheme
are in the section Executive Performance Share Plan.
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Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ fees are reviewed annually by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to analysis of the market and
industry based data and trends. Fees are set to attract
and retain high calibre directors and to reflect the
workload and contribution required, due to the scale
and complexity of the Group. Non-Executive Directors’
remuneration consists of a fixed annual fee with no
element of performance related pay.
There were no changes to the rates of remuneration
payable to Directors in the 2016 year. The increase in
fees paid to Directors in 2016 disclosed in these accounts
reflects the full year effect of the increases granted on
1 January 2015, as disclosed in the 2015 Annual Report.

Transitional Arrangements – Mr R Burns,
Managing Director and Mr M O’Brien
Executive Director
On 28 April 2016, Mr Robin Burns announced his
retirement from EQT Holdings Limited with his final
service date being 1 July 2016.
Effective from 28 April 2016, Mr Mick O’Brien
was appointed to the role of Executive Director
of EQT Holdings Limited and ceased to be a
Non-Executive Director. The remuneration arrangement
put in place for this appointment reflected its transitional
nature. Mr M O’Brien was subsequently appointed to
the permanent role of Managing Director on 1 July 2016
and the remuneration for this new appointment includes
fixed remuneration and at-risk short and longer term
incentives.

Relationship between remuneration policy and Group performance
The operational and financial performance of the Group over the last four years to 30 June 2016 has seen a significant
uplift in revenue, however on an EPS basis has been steady. For the year ended 30 June 2016 EPS has decreased due to
the combined impact in one year of the non-operating cost of a number of key projects to restructure and enhance the
Group, exiting CTS fund distribution and upgrading superannuation and the impact of lower markets reducing FUMAS
driven revenue. As outlined in the Operating and Financial Review of the Group section of the Directors’ Report, the
undertaking of the key strategic projects has restructured the Group to provide a strong foundation for future growth.
There are encouraging signs of good organic growth momentum in CTS and TWS and combined with a significant
reduction in non-operating costs the outlook is for improved EPS performance going forward. The Board is of the view
that the remuneration policy has enabled the Group to attract and retain high quality management, and that financial
rewards to executives are considered appropriate having regard to the Group’s relative performance. The short and
long-term incentives provided to executives are disclosed in the section Remuneration of Directors and executives.
The tables below provide summary information outlining the Group earnings and movements in shareholder wealth
for the five years to 30 June 2016.
30 June 2016
$’000

30 June 2015
$’000

30 June 2014
$’000

30 June 2013
$’000

30 June 2012
$’000

Revenue

83,696

84,857

54,935

47,482

43,647

Net profit before tax

18,913

24,158

13,406

12,517

11,691

Net profit after-tax

13,288

16,959

9,713

8,671

8,381

30 June 2016

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

30 June 2013

30 June 2012

Share price at start of year

$20.39

$20.98

$14.90

$11.06

$13.90

Share price at end of year

$16.44

$20.39

$20.98

$14.90

$11.06

Interim dividend

34 cps

46 cps

46 cps

42 cps

40 cps

Final dividend

34 cps

48 cps

48 cps

50 cps

45 cps

68 cps

94 cps

94 cps

92 cps

85 cps

Earnings per share

66.98 cps

87.80 cps

88.64 cps

87.58 cps

87.66 cps

Reported earnings per share

66.98 cps

87.80 cps

88.64 cps

96.65 cps

96.74 cps

1

1,2

Total dividend
3

1 	All dividends are franked to 100% at 30% corporate income tax rate.
2 The final dividend was declared after balance date and is not reflected in the financial statements as at 30 June for each year.
3 Earnings per share figures for 2011 to 2013 have been restated to reflect the Rights issue in April/May 2014.
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Remuneration of Directors and executives
Directors
The following table discloses the Directors of EQT Holdings Limited during the year, together with their remuneration
entitlements.
Short-term
benefits

Directors

Long-term
employee
benefits

Sharebased
payments4

Total

DRA3
$

$

$

$

Post-employment
benefits
Nonmonetary1
$

Superannuation2
$

Fee /
salary
$

Bonus
$

2016

180,000

-

-

17,100

849

-

-

197,949

2015

172,500

-

-

16,388

779

-

-

189,667

Non-Executive
Directors
JA (Tony) Killen, Chairman

DF Groves, Deputy Chairman

5

2016

54,200

-

2,500

17,213

1,321

-

-

75,234

2015

99,595

-

5,000

32,280

2,059

-

-

138,934

AJM Williams
2016

102,500

-

5,000

10,212

-

-

-

117,712

2015

95,000

-

5,000

9,500

-

-

-

109,500

JG Kennett
2016

92,500

-

5,000

9,263

-

-

-

106,763

2015

86,250

-

5,000

8,669

-

-

-

99,919

2016

112,500

-

5,000

11,163

-

-

-

128,663

2015

103,750

-

5,000

10,331

-

-

-

119,081

2016

107,490

-

5,000

18,910

-

-

-

131,400

2015

96,667

-

5,000

20,152

-

-

-

121,819

AM O’Donnell

KJ Eley

Executive Director
MJ O’Brien, Non-Executive Director, Executive Director6
2016 (NED)
2016 (ED)
2016 (TOTAL)
2015

100,000

-

-

9,500

-

-

-

109,500

84,836

-

1,649

25,054

-

-

-

111,539

184,836

-

1,649

34,554

-

-

-

221,039

89,583

-

-

19,460

-

-

-

109,043

RBO Burns, Managing Director

7

2016

1,041,352

n/a

10,417

32,385

-

(45,672)

(156,824)

881,658

2015

551,575

139,200

9,642

18,783

-

14,130

282,512

1,015,842

1	Non-monetary items include eligible salary sacrificed items and any FBT. This includes any sacrificed amounts into EQT shares in accordance with
the EQT Salary Sacrifice Share Plan.
2	Superannuation includes the SGC and, in some cases, additional superannuation payments that have been sacrificed from Directors’ fees and
entitlements.
3	Directors’ Retiring Allowance (DRA) represents the movement in the accrual for Directors’ retiring allowance and is calculated in accordance with
the accounting policy as outlined in note 3.9 to the financial statements. At the 2005 AGM, shareholders approved an increase in the Directors’
fees cap on the condition that the DRA scheme was grandfathered for existing Directors and closed to future Directors. The DRA for then
participating Directors was frozen as at 31 December 2005, however, the frozen amounts are inflation adjusted annually for the movement in CPI.
Upon retirement, Directors participating in the DRA scheme are paid their DRA balance.
4 This is the expensed accounting cost of the actual and potential outcomes of the Awards made in 2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16. Refer also to
footnote 3 on page 31.
5	Mr DF Groves retired as a Director on 14 December 2015. Mr Groves received a payment of $121,667 in relation to his DRA. The payment of the
balance of his DRA is subject to shareholder approval at the AGM on 28 October 2016.
6	Mr MJ O’Brien was appointed Executive Director on 28 April 2016 and subsequently was appointed to a permanent role of Managing Director
on 1 July 2016. Mr O’Brien was entitled to a short-term incentive under his transitional remuneration arrangements, however, following his
appointment on 1 July 2016, these arrangements have been superseded by mutual agreement and he will be entitled to short and long-term
incentives for the 2017 financial year onwards in his role as Managing Director.
7	Mr RBO Burns retired as Managing Director on 1 July 2016. The salary component of his remuneration includes a retirement payment of $400,264
and $50,813 of accumulated annual leave. The superannuation component includes $13,077 SGC in relation to the retirement payment.
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Executives
The following table discloses the executives of EQT Holdings Limited during the year, together with their remuneration
entitlements. Unless otherwise stated the executives held their position for the whole of the financial year and since
the end of the financial year.
Remuneration entitlements of the executives during the year are made up of a cash component, as well as an accounting
based accrual for such items as long-term employee benefits and share-based payments, as per the following table:

Executives

Short-term
employee benefits
Salary
$

Nonmonetary1
$

Post
employment
benefits

Total Short-term
bonus/
Employment
incentive
Cost (TEC)

Superannuation2
$

Long-term
Shareemployee
based
benefits payments3

Total

$

$

$

$

$

GR Rimmer, Executive General Manager, Trustee & Wealth Services
2016

375,692

5,000

24,308

405,000

50,000

6,089

(80,514)

380,575

2015

340,017

5,000

34,983

380,000

137,700

4,518

117,227

639,445

HH Kalman, Executive General Manager, Corporate Trustee Services
2016

350,593

10,099

19,308

380,000

85,000

16,710

(75,437)

406,273

2015

311,575

9,642

18,783

340,000

92,820

9,824

112,148

554,792

SF Clancy, Executive General Manager, HR, Marketing and Communications
2016

290,887

9,805

19,308

320,000

45,000

1,610

(34,907)

331,703

2015

200,189

6,454

14,088

220,731

39,000

698

34,907

295,336

RE Bessemer, Chief Operations Officer
2016

280,593

10,099

19,308

310,000

40,000

6,234

(62,635)

293,599

2015

263,169

8,048

18,783

290,000

134,800

4,929

90,167

519,896

MG Walsh, Chief Risk Officer

4

2016

228,324

-

34,973

263,297

40,000

852

-

304,149

2015

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

PD Gentry, Chief Financial Officer

5

2016

147,926

4,124

29,308

181,358

30,000

507

n/a

211,865

2015

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

2016

79,270

1,646

19,827

100,743

n/a

(846)

51,588

151,485

2015

295,575

9,642

34,783

340,000

38,250

9,319

112,148

499,717

T Ryan, Chief Financial Officer6

1 	Non-monetary items include eligible salary sacrificed items and any FBT. This includes any sacrificed amounts into EQT shares in accordance with
the EQT Salary Sacrifice Share Plan.
2	Superannuation includes the SGC and, in some cases, additional superannuation payments that have been sacrificed from salary.
3	Share-based payments relate to the value of Awards. The value attributable to Awards is based on the accounting cost, using the fair value at
grant date. For the EPS criterion an assessment is made of the likely achievement of performance hurdles over the three year measurement
period and the accounting cost is adjusted accordingly. The EPS criterion for the 2013/14 Series which ended on 30 June 2016 was awarded at
19.73% of the maximum. Where an executive ceases employment during the year, there is a write-back of prior year EPS accounting costs which
can result in a negative figure in the current year. A negative figure can also occur where the accounting estimate of the proportion of an EPS that
will be earned is revised. For the TSR criterion the accounting standard requires the accounting cost to be spread over the measurement period
regardless of the extent of achievement of the performance criterion. The TSR for the 2013/14 Series which ended on 30 June 2016 was awarded
at 33.33% of the maximum. Regardless of the performance outcome of TSR Awards, 100% of the accounting cost is charged against executive
remuneration packages, even though the executive may receive a lesser award when measures are finalised. For TSR where a service criterion is
not achieved the related accounting cost is written back to profit or loss.
4	Mr MG Walsh became an executive effective 17 August 2015, therefore comparative figures are not applicable.
5	Mr PD Gentry became an executive effective 25 January 2016, therefore comparative figures are not applicable.
6	Mr T Ryan retired on 11 September 2015. The salary component of the remuneration includes accrued annual leave.
n/a	Not applicable.

Former executives
Mr PB Maddox ceased to be an executive for the 2016 financial year. Mr G Boubouras departed the Company
13 August 2014. These former executives are not shown in the 2015 financial year comparatives. This information is
available in the 2015 Annual Report.
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Short-term incentive: targets and outcomes
At the end of the performance period, short-term incentive targets were assessed by the Board in respect of the Executive
Director and the Executive Director assessed the performance of the executives. The Remuneration Committee and
the Board considered and approved these incentives. The outcome of each assessment is set out below:
Executives

TEC

STI opportunity

STI awarded

% awarded in
year

$

$

$

%

1

MJ O’Brien

620,000

372,000

nil

nil

RBO Burns

2

620,000

372,000

nil

nil

GR Rimmer

405,000

243,000

50,000

21

HH Kalman

380,000

228,000

85,000

37

P Gentry

400,000

200,000

30,000

35

T Ryan

340,000

170,000

nil

nil

RE Bessemer

310,000

124,000

40,000

32

G Walsh

320,000

128,000

40,000

31

SF Clancy

320,000

128,000

45,000

35

3

4

1	Mr MJ O’Brien was appointed to Executive Director on 28 April 2016 and subsequently was appointed to a permanent role of Managing Director
on 1 July 2016. Mr O’Brien was entitled to a short-term incentive under his transitional remuneration arrangements however, following his
appointment on 1 July 2016, these arrangements have been superseded by mutual agreement and he will be entitled to short and long-term
incentives for the 2017 financial year.
2	Mr RBO Burns retired as Managing Director on 1 July 2016. Mr Burns did not receive a short-term incentive. Mr Burns by mutual agreement
received a retirement payment of $400,264 plus SGC of $13,077.
3	Mr P Gentry received a pro-rata amount of his short-term incentive as he commenced on 25 January 2016.
4	Mr T Ryan retired on 11 September 2015, and as a result he did not receive a short-term incentive.

Link between profit outcomes and executive remuneration
In accordance with the short-term incentive criteria, short-term incentives were earned by the executives. Based on
2015/16 criteria, when compared to actual 2015/16 performance, approximately 28% (2015: 40%) of the maximum
short-term incentive opportunity has been awarded to eligible executives. Individual awards to executives were in the
range of 0% to 37% of maximum possible short-term incentives. In both FY15 and FY16 short-term incentives payments
to some executives included amounts awarded to reflect specific individual contributions to material projects or
initiatives, in addition to annual performance incentive criteria. These amounts are included in the “STI awarded” and
the “% awarded in year” columns above.
In relation to the long-term incentive measurement criteria, as described in the Executive Performance Share Plan
section, eligible executives who were employed at 30 June 2016 were awarded 19.73% of their individual award for the
EPS measure for the 2013/14 Series which ended 30 June 2016. For the 2013/14 Series TSR measure, 33.3% of awards
were awarded.

Employment agreements
The employment agreements for the Managing Director and executives are ongoing, permanent full-time agreements
which do not have a stipulated fixed term. The designated notice period for the Managing Director is six months. For
the executives, the designated notice period ranges between four weeks and three months.
For the Executive Director, the employment agreement was for a fixed-term period of twelve months. The designated
notice period was three months. Mr O’Brien was appointed to the permanent role of Managing Director on 1 July 2016
and this appointment does not have a stipulated term and the designated notice period is six months.
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Executive Performance Share Plan
LTI awards (Awards) are offered to executives (including
some executives who are not KMP) under the Executive
Performance Share Plan 1999 (the Plan). The first issue
of Awards commenced with the 2005/06 Series and has
continued in each subsequent year.
The structure of the Plan approved by the Remuneration
Committee forms part of the remuneration structure of
eligible executives, in particular, the long-term incentive
component of remuneration.
The following is an overview of the key features of the
Plan as determined by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board:
• The Remuneration Committee will consider and
approve participants under the Plan;
• The value of the Award is determined by the
Remuneration Committee;
• The number of share entitlements issued to each
participant for a particular Series is calculated by
dividing the value of the Award by the weighted
average share price of EQT shares traded during the
three month period to 30 June of each year;
• The performance criteria are based on:
–– TSR for the Managing Director only; and
–– EPS for all participants including Managing
Director;
–– The Award for the Managing Director is 50% TSR
and 50% EPS;
• As Executive Director Mr O’Brien was not eligible for
LTI for the 2016 financial year;
• The criteria are selected as they are aligned to
long-term growth in shareholder value;
• TSR is defined as the increase in share price over
the three year measurement period, plus dividends
reinvested over the three year period. This is compared
to a Comparator Group based on the ASX Diversified
Financials Index and a vesting scale is applied;
–– The vesting scale for TSR Awards for series 2013/14,
2014/15 and 2015/16 was:
»» A TSR ranking of 50th percentile achieves 50%
of the available Award; or
»» A TSR ranking of 75th percentile or above
achieves 100% of the available Award;
• EPS for Series 2015/16 is the reported EPS as per the
Group financial statements for the year immediately
before the start of the series (i.e. 30 June 2015);
• EPS for Series 2013/14 and 2014/15 is based on
operating profit before tax, which may exclude
approved non-operating items such as acquisition
and integration expenses and approved adjustments
for certain material share issues;
• The EPS is compared to the base year and a vesting
scale applied to calculate earned entitlements;
–– The vesting scale for EPS Awards for series 2013/14,
2014/15 and 2015/16 was:
»» Growth in pre-tax operating EPS of 5% p.a.
over the three year measurement period
achieves 25% of the available Award; or

»» Growth in pre-tax operating EPS of 15% p.a.
over three year measurement period achieves
100% of the available Award;
• The term of each Award series is a three year period,
with additional performance assessments during the
fourth year, if applicable, for TSR criterion Awards.
If there is no TSR criterion Award achieved after the
initial three year period, a fourth year measurement
period is undertaken. If there is a partial achievement
of a TSR criterion Award after the initial three year
period, there is no fourth year assessment. There is no
fourth year EPS performance assessment, regardless
of the outcome after the initial three year period;
• Each share entitlement converts to one ordinary share
of EQT on exercise;
• No amounts are paid or payable by participants on
receipt of the share entitlements;
• The share entitlements carry neither rights to
dividends nor voting rights;
• The number of share entitlements on issue is
adjusted for any capital reconstructions during the
measurement period;
• Holders of share entitlements do not have a right, by
virtue of the entitlements held, to participate in any
new share issue of the Company;
• The participant should be employed within the
Group for the duration of the measurement period to
exercise any share entitlements;
• Shares are subject to forfeiture conditions during the
three year measurement period;
• Shares can be assigned disposal restrictions of up to
twelve years which will apply to shares issued following
the three year measurement period;
• Dividends are received by participants once Awards
are vested into shares;
• The use of hedging or derivative techniques is not
permitted until shares are released from the forfeiture
condition. If hedging or derivative techniques are
used during the period when there is still a forfeiture
condition in place, then the shares are forfeited; and
• The Group Securities Dealing Policy also makes
reference to the ban on hedging or derivative
techniques and applies to all Group employees.
In accordance with the Plan, variations to the above
features may apply, where approved by the Board.
The grant date for the 2015/16 Series was 27 August 2015
for executives and 27 November 2015 for the Managing
Director. There were no alterations to terms or conditions
of the 2015/16 Series compared to the prior year apart
from the change to the EPS criterion described above.
The 2013/14 Series EPS criterion which ended on
30 June 2016 was awarded to eligible executives who
were employed at 30 June 2016 at 19.73% of the maximum.
For the 2013/14 Series EPS criterion 17,284 EQT shares
were awarded to executives including departed
executives and 47,469 EPS Awards were forfeited. For
the 2013/14 Series TSR criterion 3,319 EQT shares were
awarded and 6,639 forfeited. During the year, departed
executives were awarded 2,894 EQT shares under the
2014/15 series EPS criterion.
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The following unvested share-based payment arrangements under the LTI were in existence during the period:

Number at
30 June 2016

Award Series

Grant
date

Expiry
date

Exercise
price

Fair value at
Grant date

Total maximum
future
accounting
value of Grant*

$

$

$

2015/16 Series

39,160

**

30/06/18

Nil

18.27

761,662

2014/15 Series

28,349

***

30/06/17

Nil

16.18

489,304

Totals

67,509

1,250,966

* The minimum future accounting value of each Grant is nil.
** The Grant date for executives was 27 August 2015 and for the Managing Director, 27 November 2015.
*** The Grant date for executives was 25 July 2014 and for the Managing Director, 31 October 2014.

The share entitlements were valued by PricewaterhouseCoopers using an adjusted form of the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model that incorporates a Monte Carlo simulation analysis. The model has been modified to incorporate an
estimate of the probability of achieving the TSR hurdle and the number of share entitlements vesting.
Inputs into the model

2015/16 Series

2014/15 Series

Managing Director

Other participants

Managing Director

Other participants

$21.01

$22.65

$19.20

$20.20

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

30%

30%

25%

25%

3 years

3 years

3 years

3 years

5.5%

5.5%

5.5%

5.5%

2.09%

1.80%

2.57%

2.68%

Grant date share price
Exercise price
Expected volatility
Share entitlement life

1

Dividend yield
Risk-free interest rate

1 In accordance with the Plan, the measurement of performance criteria is at the end of the three year period ending 30 June, however, if the TSR
performance criterion (Managing Director only) is zero a further assessment at the end of the fourth year will apply.

The following is a summary of movements in Awards in respect of executives:

2016

Balance of
Awards
Awards
Awards at
exercised
granted as
1 July 2015 compensation into shares
No.
No.
No.

Awards
vested &
exercisable
Balance of
(excluding
Balance of
Awards
Awards
Awards at those already not vested at
exercised) 30 June 20162
forfeited1 30 June 2016
No.
No.
No.
No.

Vested
during
2016 year
No.

RBO Burns

39,110

17,119

-

(50,946)

5,283

(5,283)

-

5,283

T Ryan

15,346

-

(10,739)

(4,607)

-

-

-

10,739

HH Kalman

15,346

10,492

-

(6,297)

19,541

(1,548)

17,993

1,548

GR Rimmer

16,228

11,182

-

(6,297)

21,113

(1,548)

19,565

1,548

6,067

5,890

-

-

11,957

-

11,957

-

12,674

5,706

-

(5,038)

13,342

(1,238)

12,104

1,238

G. Walsh

-

5,890

-

-

5,890

-

5,890

-

PD Gentry

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

SF Clancy
RE Bessemer

1 The value of Awards forfeited for executives during the year ended 30 June 2016 was $515,569 for the 2013/14 Series, $520,285 for the 2014/15
Series and $426,066 for the 2015/16 Series.
2 The balance of Awards not vested at 30 June 2016 does not necessarily represent Awards that will be vested in the future. The balance will remain
until the respective measurement periods have been completed and a final assessment is made.
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Balance of
Awards
Awards
Awards at
exercised
granted as
1 July 2014 compensation into shares
No.
No.
No.

2015

Awards
vested &
exercisable
Balance of
(excluding
Balance of
Awards
Awards
Awards at those already not vested at
exercised) 30 June 20152
forfeited1 30 June 2015
No.
No.
No.
No.

Vested
during
2015 year
No.

RBO Burns

41,902

19,194

-

(345)

60,751

(21,641)

39,110

21,641

T Ryan

17,616

7,501

-

(307)

24,810

(9,464)

15,346

9,464

HH Kalman

17,616

7,501

-

(307)

24,810

(9,464)

15,346

9,464

GR Rimmer

17,616

8,383

-

(307)

25,692

(9,464)

16,228

9,464

RE Bessemer

13,604

6,398

-

(230)

19,772

(7,098)

12,674

7,098

-

6,067

-

-

6,067

-

6,067

-

SF Clancy

1 The value of Awards forfeited for executives during the year ended 30 June 2015 was $14,880 for the 2012/13 Series.
2 The balance of Awards not vested at 30 June 2015 does not necessarily represent Awards that will be vested in the future. The balance will remain
until the respective measurement periods have been completed and a final assessment is made.

Director and executive equity holdings
Director and executive relevant interests in fully paid ordinary shares of EQT Holdings Limited for the financial year
are as follows:
Balance at
1 July 2015

Received on
exercise of
share right

Net other change

Balance at
30 June 2016

No.

No.

No.

No.

380,046

-

115

380,161

KJ Eley

92,543

-

20,270

112,813

JG Kennett

37,337

-

8,069

45,406

JA (Tony) Killen

30,345

-

20,161

50,506

RBO Burns

24,759

21,641

1,000

47,400

MJ O’Brien

10,000

-

1,000

11,000

AM O'Donnell

7,546

-

2,023

9,569

AJM Williams

4,080

-

410

4,490

HH Kalman

29,406

9,464

87

38,957

T Ryan

28,418

20,203

-

48,621

GR Rimmer

6,578

9,464

269

16,311

RE Bessemer

1,589

7,098

-

8,687

SF Clancy

-

-

-

-

PD Gentry

-

-

1,019

1,019

MG Walsh

-

-

-

-

2016
Directors
DF Groves1

Executives
1

1 The balances shown for Mr Groves and Mr Ryan represent the number of shares held on the dates that they ceased to be a Director and executive,
respectively.
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There were no shares granted during the 2016 financial year as compensation.
Balance at
1 July 2014

Received on
exercise of
share right

Net other change

Balance at
30 June 2015

No.

No.

No.

No.

379,798

-

248

380,046

KJ Eley

89,033

-

3,510

92,543

JG Kennett

35,495

-

1,842

37,337

JA (Tony) Killen

29,045

-

1,300

30,345

RBO Burns

6,778

17,981

-

24,759

MJ O’Brien

-

-

10,000

10,000

AM O'Donnell

7,076

-

470

7,546

AJM Williams

2,811

-

1,269

4,080

HH Kalman

25,394

3,927

85

29,406

T Ryan

23,193

3,927

1,298

28,418

6,330

-

248

6,578

RE Bessemer

-

1,589

-

1,589

SF Clancy

-

-

-

-

2015
Directors
DF Groves

Executives

GR Rimmer

There were no shares granted during the 2015 financial year as compensation.
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Additional information
Indemnification of Directors, Officers
and auditors
During the financial year, the Company paid a premium
in respect of a contract insuring the Directors, Company
Secretaries and Officers of the Group against a liability
incurred as a Director, Company Secretary or Officer to
the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The
contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of
the coverage and the amount of the premium.
The Company has not otherwise, during or since the
financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify a
Director, a Company Secretary, an Officer or auditor of
the Company or of any related body corporate against a
liability incurred as such a Director, Company Secretary,
Officer or auditor.

Rounding-off of amounts
The Company is a company of the kind referred to in
ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financials/Directors’
Reports) Instrument 2016/191 dated 24 March 2016, and
in accordance with the Corporations Instrument amounts
in the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements
are rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars unless
otherwise indicated.

Licensed Trustees
Equity Trustees Limited and Equity Trustees Wealth
Services Limited are licensed under the Corporations Act
2001 to provide traditional trustee company services.
This includes performing estate management functions,
preparing a Will, preparing a trust instrument, preparing
a power of attorney or preparing an agency agreement,
applying for probate of a Will, applying for grant of letter
of administration or electing to administer a deceased
estate, and establishing and operating common funds.
Assets and liabilities of trusts, estates and agencies
for which it acts as trustee, executor or agent, are not
included in the Company’s financial statement.
Equity Trustees Superannuation Limited is licensed under
the Corporations Act 2001 to provide superannuation
trustee services. Assets and liabilities of superannuation
funds for which it acts as trustee are not included in the
Company’s financial statement.
On behalf of the Directors

Non-audit services
The Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit
services during the year, by the auditor (or by another
person or firm on the auditor’s behalf), is compatible
with the general standard of independence for auditors
imposed by the Corporations Act 2001.
Details of amounts paid or payable to the auditor for
non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor
are outlined in note 11 to the Financial Statements.

Mr JA (Tony) Killen OAM
Chairman
Dated 31 August 2016

Auditor’s independence declaration
The auditor’s independence declaration is included on
page 38.
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Auditor’s Independence
Declaration

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
ABN 74 490 121 060
550 Bourke Street
Melbourne VIC 3000
GPO Box 78
Melbourne VIC 3001 Australia
Tel: +61 3 9671 7000
Fax: +61 3 9671 7001
www.deloitte.com.au
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
ABN 74 490 121 060

31 August 2016
The Board of Directors
EQT Holdings Limited
Level 2, 575 Bourke Street
MELBOURNE VIC 3000

550 Bourke Street
Melbourne VIC 3000
Deloitte
Tohmatsu
GPO
BoxTouche
78
ABN 74 490
121
060 Australia
Melbourne
VIC
3001
550 Bourke
Street
Tel:
+61 3 9671
7000
Melbourne
Fax:
+61 3 VIC
96713000
7001
GPO Box 78
www.deloitte.com.au
Melbourne VIC 3001 Australia
Tel: +61 3 9671 7000
Fax: +61 3 9671 7001
www.deloitte.com.au

31
August
Dear
Board2016
Members
EQT Holdings Limited
The31Board
of 2016
Directors
August
EQT
Holdings
Limited
In accordance with
section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to provide the following declaration
Level
2,
575
Bourke
Street
of independence to the
directors of EQT Holdings Limited.
MELBOURNE
VIC
3000
The Board of Directors

Limited
AsEQT
leadHoldings
audit partner
for the audit of the financial statements of EQT Holdings Limited for the financial year
Level302,June
575 2016,
BourkeI declare
Street that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:
ended
Dear
Board Members
MELBOURNE
VIC 3000
(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
EQT Holdings Limited
Members
(ii)Dear
anyBoard
applicable
code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.
In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to provide the following declaration
of
independence
the directors of EQT Holdings Limited.
EQT
HoldingstoLimited
Yours
sincerely

AsInlead
audit partner
for the307C
auditofofthe
theCorporations
financial statements
EQT
Holdings
Limited
the financial
year
accordance
with section
Act 2001,ofI am
pleased
to provide
thefor
following
declaration
ended
30 June 2016,
declare
that of
to EQT
the best
of my Limited.
knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:
of independence
to Ithe
directors
Holdings
(i) As the
of the Corporations
2001Holdings
in relationLimited
to the audit;
leadauditor
audit independence
partner for therequirements
audit of the financial
statements Act
of EQT
for theand
financial year
ended
30
June
2016,
I
declare
that
to
the
best
of
my
knowledge
and
belief,
there
have
been
no
contraventions
of:
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.
(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
Yours sincerely
(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.
Yours
sincerely
Neil
Brown
Partner
Chartered Accountants
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Neil Brown
Partner
Chartered Accountants
Neil Brown
Partner
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
Chartered Accountants
Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Directors’ Declaration
EQT Holdings Limited
ABN 22 607 797 615

Directors’ Declaration for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
The Directors declare that:
a. In the Directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts
as and when they become due and payable;
b. The attached financial statements are in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as stated
in note 3 to the financial statements;
c. In the Directors’ opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with accounting standards and giving a true and fair view of the
financial position and performance of the Company and the Group; and
d. The Directors have received from the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer the declarations required
by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors made pursuant to section 295(5) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the Directors

Mr JA (Tony) Killen OAM
Chairman
Dated 31 August 2016
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Financial
Report 2016
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016
Note

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Revenue

6

82,459

83,735

Other revenue

6

1,237

1,122

Total revenue

6

83,696

84,857

Employee benefits expenses

8

37,521

37,482

2,913

3,263

810

1,089

Other employment and contracting expenses
Audit and tax advice expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

8

2,155

1,796

Management rights amortisation

8

1,313

1,345

621

630

Legal, consulting and regulatory expenses

2,293

1,124

Marketing expenses

1,335

1,684

Information technology expenses

4,022

3,600

Occupancy expenses

2,508

2,333

Project expenses

6,361

4,017

Other expenses

2,931

2,336

Total expenses

64,783

60,699

Profit before income tax expense

18,913

24,158

5,625

7,199

13,288

16,959

(238)

-

Increase/(decrease) from revaluation of available-for-sale investments

(96)

(73)

Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified subsequently

100

22

13,054

16,908

13,054

16,908

Insurance expenses

Income tax expense

9

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Realised (gain)/loss on sale of available-for-sale investments

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Earnings per share
Basic (cents per share)

29

66.98

87.80

Diluted (cents per share)

29

66.47

87.16

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position
as at 30 June 2016
Note

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

37

48,723

24,954

Trade and other receivables

12

11,276

9,651

Accrued income and other current assets

13

5,556

6,638

Other financial assets

15

-

5,150

65,555

46,393

Current assets

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables

14

1,825

1,210

Other financial assets

15

-

10,493

Furniture, equipment and leasehold

16

1,463

1,192

Intangible assets

17

83,293

86,753

9

3,519

4,016

Deferred tax assets
Goodwill

102,177

102,177

Total non-current assets

18

192,277

205,841

Total assets

257,832

252,234

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

19

978

1,175

Provisions

21

5,065

5,480

Borrowings

20

8,000

-

Other current liabilities

22

781

113

9

224

2,333

15,048

9,101

Current tax payable
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions

23

1,958

1,941

Other non-current liabilities

24

72

165

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets

2,030

2,106

17,078

11,207

240,754

241,027

Equity
Issued capital

26

231,780

227,652

Investment revaluation reserve

28

-

234

Other reserves

27

832

1,892

8,142

11,249

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

240,754

241,027

Total equity

240,754

241,027

Retained earnings

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016
Reserves
Fully paid
ordinary shares
$’000

Investment
revaluation
$’000

Retained
earnings
$’000

Other
reserves
$’000

Total
equity
$’000

216,117

285

12,348

1,349

230,099

Profit for the period

-

-

16,959

-

16,959

Decrease from revaluation of available-for-sale
investments

-

(73)

-

-

(73)

Related income tax

-

22

-

-

22

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

(51)

16,959

-

16,908

62

-

-

-

62

6,108

-

-

-

6,108

Shares issued under employee share
acquisition plan

220

-

-

(220)

-

Shares issued under executive share scheme

372

-

-

(372)

-

Shares issued under share placement

4,953

-

-

-

4,953

Share issue costs

(257)

-

-

-

(257)

77

-

-

-

77

Balance at 1 July 2014

Shares issued under employee salary
sacrifice share plan
Shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan

Related income tax
Provision for executive share entitlements

-

-

-

859

859

Provision for employee share acquisition plan

-

-

-

276

276

Payment of dividends

-

-

(18,058)

-

(18,058)

227,652

234

11,249

1,892

241,027

Profit for the period

-

-

13,288

-

13,288

Decrease from revaluation of available-for-sale
investments

-

(96)

-

-

(96)

Related income tax

-

29

-

-

29

Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments

-

(238)

-

-

(238)

Related income tax

-

71

-

-

71

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

(234)

13,288

-

13,054

43

-

-

-

43

3,067

-

-

-

3,067

Shares issued under employee share
acquisition plan

226

-

-

(226)

-

Shares issued under executive share scheme

809

-

-

(809)

-

Share issue costs

(17)

-

-

-

(17)

Related income tax

-

-

-

-

-

Provision for executive share entitlements

-

-

-

(461)

(461)

Balance at 30 June 2015

Shares issued under employee salary
sacrifice share plan
Shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan

Provision for employee share acquisition plan

-

-

-

286

286

Transfer to capital reserves

-

-

(150)

150

-

Payment of dividends

-

-

(16,245)

-

(16,245)

231,780

-

8,142

832

240,754

Balance at 30 June 2016

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

94,590

94,425

(75,456)

(73,771)

(7,135)

(5,348)

11,999

15,306

-

(10,000)

15,547

3,000

1,248

953

-

1

Payment for furniture, equipment and leasehold

(945)

(548)

Payment for intangible assets

(637)

(2,168)

-

(145,371)

15,213

(154,133)

Proceeds from issues of equity securities

1,752

5,751

Proceeds from borrowings

8,000

-

(17)

(257)

Dividend paid to members of the parent entity (net of shares issued under
dividend reinvestment plan)

(13,178)

(11,950)

Net cash provided by financing activities

(3,443)

(6,456)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash held

23,769

(145,283)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year

24,954

170,237

48,723

24,954

Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Income tax paid
Net cash provided by operating activities

37 (b)

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for investment securities
Proceeds on sale of investment securities
Interest received
Dividends received

Payment for shares in a subsidiary
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Payment for share issue cost

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year

37 (a)

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial
Statements
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2016
1. General information
EQT Holdings Limited (the Company) is a public company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (trading under the
symbol “EQT”), incorporated in Australia and operating solely in Australia.
EQT Holdings Limited’s registered office and its principal place of business is Level 2, 575 Bourke St, Melbourne, Victoria
3000, Australia. EQT Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (refer note 33) are referred to as ‘the Group’ in the following notes.
The principal activities of the Group are described in note 35.

2. Application of new and revised Accounting Standards
2.1 Amendments to AASBs and the new Interpretation that are mandatorily effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the amendment (shown below) to AASBs issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB). This amendment is mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 July 2015,
and therefore relevant for the current year end.
AASB 2015-3 ‘Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from the
Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality’

This amendment completes the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031
in all Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, allowing that
Standard to effectively be withdrawn.

The application of the amendment does not have a material impact on the disclosures or amounts recognised in the Group’s
financial statements and has had no impact on basic and diluted earnings per share (2015: nil).

2.2 Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted
At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, there were a number of Standards and Interpretations that were
issued but not yet effective. The Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective that are relevant to the Group are
listed below.
Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on
or after

Expected to be
initially applied in
the financial
year ending

AASB 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, and the relevant amending standards

1 January 2018

30 June 2019

AASB 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, AASB 2014-5
‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15’,
and AASB 2015-8 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Effective date of AASB 15’

1 January 2018

30 June 2019

AASB 16 ‘Leases’

1 January 2019

30 June 2020

AASB 2014-4 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation’

1 January 2016

30 June 2017

AASB 2015-1 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual
Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 2012-2014 Cycle’

1 January 2016

30 June 2017

AASB 2015-2 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure
Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101’

1 January 2016

30 June 2017

AASB 2016-1 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’

1 January 2017

30 June 2018

AASB 2016-2 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure
Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107’

1 January 2017

30 June 2018

Standard/Interpretation

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the following IASB Standards and IFRIC Interpretations (for
which Australian equivalent Standards and Interpretations have not yet been issued) were issued but not yet effective.

Standard/Interpretation
Clarifications to IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
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Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on
or after

Expected to be
initially applied in
the financial
year ending

1 January 2018

30 June 2019

2. Application of new and revised Accounting Standards (cont’d)
Impact of changes to Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations
A number of Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations are issued but are not effective for the
current year end. The following existing group accounting
policies will change on adoption of these pronouncements:

AASB 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, and the relevant
amending standards
AASB 9, issued in December 2009, introduced new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. AASB 9 was subsequently amended
in December 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and in December 2013 to include the
new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of AASB 9 was issued in December 2014,
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income’ (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.
Key requirements of AASB 9 that are relevant to the Group
are as follows:
AASB 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within its scope to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding, are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. AASB 9 permits entities to make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
For measurement of financial liabilities designated as at
fair value through profit or loss, AASB 9 requires that the
amount of change in fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under AASB 139 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement’, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, AASB
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under AASB 139. The
new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in AASB 139 but provide greater flexibility.
The effectiveness test has been amended and there are
greater disclosure requirements.
AASB 9 will apply for the Group for the annual period
beginning 1 July 2018. The Directors anticipate that the
application of AASB 9 may have an impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until the Group has
completed a detailed review.

AASB 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
AASB 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. AASB 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including AASB 118
‘Revenue,’ AASB 111 ‘Construction Contracts’ and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
The core principle of AASB 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue so that it matches the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers and the amount recognised
is the consideration that the entity expects to be entitled to
in exchange for those goods or services. Under AASB 15,
an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.
AASB 15 will apply for the Group for the annual period
beginning 1 July 2018. The Directors anticipate that the
application of AASB 15 may have an impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of AASB 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

AASB 16 ‘Leases’
AASB 16 provides a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment
in the financial statements of both lessees and lessors.
The accounting model for lessees will require lessees to
recognise all leases on balance sheet, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.
AASB 16 will apply for the Group for the annual period
beginning 1 July 2019. The Directors anticipate that the
application of AASB 16 may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
AASB 16 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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2. Application of new and revised
Accounting Standards (cont’d)
AASB 2016-2 ‘Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to
AASB 107’
Amends AASB 107 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ to require
entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes.
The amendments will apply for the Group for the annual
period beginning 1 July 2017. The Directors do not
anticipate that the application of these amendments
will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
Other than as noted above, the future adoption of the
various Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations
that are issued but not yet effective is not expected to have
a material impact on the Group’s accounting policies.
However, the future adoption of these pronouncements may
result in changes to information currently disclosed in the
financial statements. The Group does not intend to adopt
any of these pronouncements before their effective date.

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements are general purpose financial
statements which have been prepared in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and
Interpretations, and comply with other requirements of the
law. The financial statements comprise the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. For the purposes of
preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group
is a for-profit entity. Accounting Standards include Australian
Accounting Standards. Compliance with Australian
Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements
and notes of the Group and the Company comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the
Directors on 31 August 2016.

Corporate reorganisation and comparatives
Effective 14 December 2015, Equity Trustees Limited (the
former parent entity of the Group) undertook a corporate
reorganisation by implementing a Scheme of Arrangement
with its shareholders. From this date, EQT Holdings Limited
became the new parent entity of Equity Trustees Limited
and the Group, and its shares are publicly traded on the
Australian Securities Exchange (ASX).
Under the principles of corporate reorganisation, in
accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the
financial statements of EQT Holdings Limited includes the
historical financial information of Equity Trustees Limited
for the period before the Scheme of Arrangement. This is
because the corporate reorganisation did not represent a
business combination in accordance with AASB 3 ‘Business
Combination’ since the corporate reorganisation did not
involve any change of economic substance and, therefore,
represents a continuation of the Group. Accordingly,
the comparative information presented in the financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 represents
the consolidated financial position of Equity Trustees
Limited and the Group as at 30 June 2015, and the financial
performance of Equity Trustees Limited and the Group for
the year ended 30 June 2015.
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3.2 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value,
as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair values of the consideration
given in exchange for assets. All amounts are presented in
Australian dollars unless otherwise noted.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of AASB 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of AASB 117, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as value in use in AASB 136 ‘Impairment of Assets’.
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:
• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
The Company is a company of the kind referred to in ASIC
Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports)
Instrument, dated 24 March 2016, and in accordance with
that Corporations Instrument amounts in the financial report
are rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless
otherwise indicated.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.3 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

• has power over the investee;
• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and
• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
When the Company has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:
• the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;
• potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote
holders or other parties;
• rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
• any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Company has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intragroup
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable AASBs).

3.4 Business combinations
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:
• deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with AASB 112
‘Income Taxes’ and AASB 119 ‘Employee Benefits’
respectively;
• liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with AASB 2
‘Share-based Payment’ at the acquisition date; and
• assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with AASB 5 ‘Noncurrent Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations’ are measured in
accordance with that Standard.
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction by transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another Standard.
Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified
as an asset or liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with AASB 139, or AASB 137
‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’,
as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group attains control) and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

Dividend and interest revenue

3.5 Goodwill

3.8 Borrowing costs

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of the acquisition of the
business (see note 3.4 above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated income statement. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, unless they relate to acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets in which case
the costs are capitalised.

3.6 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable on an accruals basis. Revenue is
reduced for rebates and other similar allowances.

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognised when the
related service has been performed. In relation to corpus
commission a percentage of revenue is recognised on
completion of each stage of the estate administration.
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Dividend and interest revenue are recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Dividend revenue from investments is recognised when
the Group’s right to receive payment has been established.
Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

3.7 Leased assets
Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred. In the event that lease incentives are
received to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefits of
incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

3.9 Employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, long service
leave, and directors’ retiring allowance when it is probable
that settlement will be required and they are capable of
being measured reliably. The Directors’ Retiring Allowance
(DRA) was frozen as at 31 December 2005, except for an
annual inflation adjustment in line with the movement in CPI.
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at their nominal values using
the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of
settlement. Liabilities recognised in respect of long-term
employee benefits are measured as the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the
Group in respect of services provided by employees up to
reporting date.
Payments to defined contribution superannuation plans are
expensed when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer
of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises
any related restructuring costs.

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.10 Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instrument at the
grant date. The Group has two types of equity-settled
share-based payments: the Long-term Incentive Awards
(LTI) and the Employee Share Acquisition Plan (ESAP).
Fair value of the LTI is measured by using an adjusted form
of the Black-Scholes option pricing model that incorporates
a Monte Carlo simulation analysis. The model has been
modified to incorporate an estimate of the probability
of achieving the performance hurdle and the number of
Awards vesting. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settled employee benefits reserve.
Shares issued under the ESAP are valued at fair value
which is determined at the date of issue to employees and
this amount is expensed in the income statement with a
corresponding entry in issued capital.

3.11 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised

to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred
tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities, and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Tax consolidation
The Company and all its wholly-owned Australian resident
entities are part of a tax-consolidated group under
Australian taxation law. EQT Holdings Limited is the head
entity in the tax-consolidated group and the other members
are identified in note 33. Tax expense/income, deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from temporary
differences of the members of the tax-consolidated group
are recognised in the separate financial statements of the
members of the tax-consolidated group using the ‘separate
taxpayer within group’ approach by reference to the carrying
amounts in the separate financial statements of each entity
and the tax values applying under tax consolidation. Current
tax liabilities and assets and deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and tax credits of the members of the
tax-consolidated group are recognised by the Company (as
head entity in the tax-consolidated group).
Due to the existence of a tax funding arrangement between
the entities in the tax-consolidated group, amounts are
recognised as payable to or receivable by each member of
the tax-consolidated group in relation to the tax contribution
amounts paid or payable between the parent entity and the
other members of the tax-consolidated group in accordance
with the arrangement.
Entities within the tax-consolidated group have entered into
a tax funding arrangement and a tax sharing agreement
with the head entity. The Company and each of the entities
in the tax-consolidated group have agreed to pay a tax
equivalent payment to or from the head entity, based on the
current tax liability or current tax asset of the entity. The tax
sharing agreement entered into between members of the
tax-consolidated group provides for the determination of
the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities
EQT Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations
or if an entity should leave the tax-consolidated group. The
effect of the tax sharing agreement is that each member’s
liability for the tax payable by the tax-consolidated group is
limited to the amount payable to the head entity under the
tax funding arrangement.

Investment in tax-consolidated group
Under Australian tax law, the taxable profit made by a
tax-consolidated group in relation to an entity leaving the
Group depends on a range of factors, including the tax
values and/or carrying values of assets and liabilities of the
leaving entity, which vary in line with the transactions and
events recognised in each entity. The taxable profit or loss
ultimately made on any disposal of the investments within
the tax-consolidated group will therefore depend upon
when each entity leaves the tax-consolidated group and the
assets and liabilities that the leaving entity holds at that time.
Because the consolidated entity has no current intention to
dispose of any subsidiaries within the Group, a deferred tax
liability has not been recognised in relation to investments
within the tax-consolidated group. Furthermore, temporary
differences that might arise on disposal of the entities in
the tax-consolidated group cannot be reliably measured
because of their inherent uncertainties surrounding the
nature of any future disposal that might occur.

3.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and have
a maturity of three months or less at the date of acquisition.

3.13 Furniture, equipment and leasehold
improvements
Furniture, equipment and leasehold improvements
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation on furniture
and equipment is recognised so as to write-off the cost or
valuation of the assets less their residual values over their
useful lives using the straight-line method. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease
or estimated useful life, whichever is the shorter, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes
recognised on a prospective basis.
An item of furniture, equipment or leasehold improvement
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of
an item of furniture, equipment or leasehold improvement
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
The following useful lives are used in the calculation of
depreciation:
Computer hardware and equipment

1 – 6 years

Office furniture and equipment

1 – 10 years

Leasehold improvements

2 – 6 years
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3.14 Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets – research and
development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:
• the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
• the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;
• the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
• how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;
• the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and
• the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first
meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation (if finite life intangible)
and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Management rights and customer contract
intangibles
Management rights and customer contract intangibles
arising in relation to acquisitions are carried at cost as
non-current intangible assets. Where the management rights
and customer contract intangibles have an indefinite useful
life they are not amortised but are subject to an ongoing
impairment test (refer note 3.15). Where the management
rights and customer contract intangibles have a finite useful
life they are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment. Amortisation is charged on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method is reviewed at
the end of each annual reporting period, with any changes
in these accounting estimates being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of finite life intangible assets
The following useful lives are used in the calculation of
amortisation expense:
Software

1 – 10 years

Management rights and customer
contract intangibles

4 – 16 years

Makegood asset

5 years

3.15 Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, and intangible
assets not yet available for use, are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is

reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.

3.16 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

3.17 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

3.18 Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or
loss’, ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’
financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. The
Group does not have any financial assets classified as at ‘fair
value through profit or loss’ or ‘held-to-maturity’. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the timeframe established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Equities and investments in managed investment schemes
held by the Group are classified as being available-for-sale
and are stated at fair value. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 39. Gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve, with the exception of impairment losses, interest
calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, which
are recognised in profit or loss. Where the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment. Interest is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.
For equity instruments, including listed or unlisted shares,
objective evidence of impairment includes information
about significant changes with an adverse effect that
have taken place in the technological, investment market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates,
and indicates that the cost of the investment in the equity
instrument may not be recovered. A significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment for
unlisted shares classified as available-for-sale.
For all other financial assets objective evidence of
impairment could include:
• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or
• default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or
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• it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation; or
• the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written-off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written-off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.
When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period. With the exception of available-for-sale equity
instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised. In
respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable, and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, is
recognised in profit or loss.

3. Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety
(e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of
a transferred asset or retains a residual interest that does not
result in the retention of substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and the Group retains control), the Group
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised, and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income,
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

3.19 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially
at their fair values and, if not designated at fair value through
the profit or loss, are subsequently at the higher of:
• the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined under AASB 137 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’; and
• the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies.

Other financial liabilities
The financial liabilities of the Group are classified as other
financial liabilities. There are no financial liabilities classified
as fair value through the profit or loss. Other financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The
effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

3.20 Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of Goods and Services Tax (GST), except:
• where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of
expense; or
• for receivables and payables which are recognised
inclusive of GST.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables. Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement
on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising
from investing and financing activities which is recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as
operating cash flows.

4. Critical accounting judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required
to make judgements, estimates, and assumptions about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
The following are the critical judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty used in the preparation of the financial
statements that have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill, and indefinite life
management rights and customer contract intangibles
Determining whether goodwill or the indefinite life
management rights and customer contract are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill and the indefinite
life management rights have been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and an appropriate discount rate in order to calculate
present value.
At 30 June 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill is
$102,177,000 and the management rights and customer
contract intangibles is $77,957,000 (2015: $102,177,000
goodwill and $79,270,000 management rights and customer
contract intangibles). No impairment has been identified
(30 June 2015: nil).
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)
Intangible assets
The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually. Any reassessment of useful lives in a particular year will affect
the amortisation expense (either increasing or decreasing) through to the end of the reassessed useful life for both the
current and future years. The Directors also review the status of any material software configuration projects in progress. At
30 June 2016, there were no material software configuration projects in progress (2015: $281,000).

Provisions
As referred to in note 3.16, the amounts included in provisions represent the Directors’ best estimate of the future outflow of
economic benefits that will be required to settle identified outstanding issues including employee benefit provisions.

Income tax liabilities
The ATO is undertaking a review of the tax treatment of an acquisition in the 2011 financial year that resulted in a right to
future income deduction. The Group had received tax advice that the tax deduction was allowable and is of the opinion the
tax deduction has been correctly calculated and claimed. However, the ultimate outcome of the ATO review is not yet known.

5. Discontinued operations
The Group did not have any discontinued operations (2015: nil).

6. Revenue
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

82,459

83,735

– Bank deposits

587

684

– Investments

297

185

Distributions from managed investment scheme

115

253

Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments

238

-

1,237

1,122

83,696

84,857

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year:
Revenue from service activities
Interest revenue:

Total revenue

The following is an analysis of investment revenue earned on financial assets by category of asset:
Available-for-sale financial assets

650

438

Loans and receivables (including cash and bank balances)

587

684

1,237

1,122

Total investment income for financial assets not designated as at fair value
through the profit or loss

7. Finance expenses
The borrowing cost on the unsecured bank loan facility (refer note 20) for the year was $132,000 (2015: nil).
No borrowing costs were capitalised (2015: nil).
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8. Profit for the year
There is no profit or loss attributable to non-controlling interests (2015: nil).
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Profit for the year has been arrived at after crediting/(charging) the following gains and (losses):
Gain from disposal of available-for-sale investments 			

238

-

(1,303)

(12)

(1,065)

(12)

Depreciation of non-current assets

646

649

Amortisation of non-current assets

1,509

1,146

2,155

1,795

1,313

1,345

3,468

3,140

2,088

1,906

2,696

2,598

(133)

1,197

34,958

33,687

37,521

37,482

Project related employee benefits

1,166

1,951

Total employee benefit expense

38,687

39,433

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

5,739

6,949

-

(22)

(143)

250

29

22

5,625

7,199

18,913

24,158

5,674

7,247

491

502

(540)

(503)

-

(25)

5,625

7,221

-

(22)

5,625

7,199

Gain/(loss) on disposal of plant and equipment and software
Profit for the year includes the following expenses:
Depreciation and amortisation:

Amortisation of management rights
Operating lease rental expenses:
Minimum lease payments
Employee benefit expense:
Post employment benefits:
– Superannuation contributions
Share-based payments:
– Equity-settled share-based payments
Other employee benefits

9. Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises:
Current income tax expense
Prior year tax adjustments recognised in the current year
Deferred tax expense relating to the origination and reversal of temporary
differences
Deferred tax reclassified from equity to profit or loss
Total income tax expense
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Income tax expense calculated at 30%
Non-deductible expenses
Non-assessable income
Franked dividends
Prior year tax adjustments

The tax rate used in the above 2016 and 2015 reconciliations is the corporate tax rate of 30% payable by Australian corporate
entities on taxable profits under Australian tax law. There has been no change in the corporate tax rate when compared with
the previous reporting period.
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9. Income taxes (cont’d)
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

(470)

(471)

470

394

-

(77)

(29)

(22)

(71)

-

(100)

(22)

224

2,333

3,519

4,016

Income tax expense/(credit) recognised directly in equity:
Current tax
Share issue expenses deductible over 5 years
Deferred tax
Arising on transactions with equity participants:
Share issue expenses deductible over 5 years
Total income tax recognised directly in equity
Income tax expense/(credit) recognised in other comprehensive income:
Deferred tax
Movement in revaluation of available-for-sale investments
Reclassification from equity to profit or loss
Realised gain on sale of available-for-sale investments
Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable
Deferred tax balances are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
Deferred tax asset
Opening
balance
$’000

Charged
to income
$’000

Charged
to equity
$’000

Other
$’000

Closing
balance
$’000

Provisions

2,680

(328)

-

-

2,352

Expenditure deductible over 5 years

1,832

8

(470)

-

1,370

(60)

15

-

-

(45)

Intangible assets

(336)

178

-

-

(158)

Available-for-sale investments

(100)

29

71

-

-

4,016

(98)

(399)

-

3,519

Provisions

1,934

446

-

300

2,680

Expenditure deductible over 5 years

2,327

(101)

(394)

-

1,832

(38)

(22)

-

-

(60)

Intangible assets

(263)

(73)

-

-

(336)

Available-for-sale investments

(122)

-

22

-

(100)

3,838

250

(372)

300

4,016

2016
Temporary differences

Property, plant and equipment

2015
Temporary differences

Property, plant and equipment

The Group has no unrecognised deferred tax balances.

Tax consolidation
For information regarding tax consolidation, tax funding and tax sharing arrangements refer to note 3.11.
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10. Key management personnel remuneration
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

The aggregate compensation made to key management personnel of the Company and the Group is set
out below:
Short-term employee benefits

3,994

3,856

Post employment benefits (Superannuation)

317

286

Other long-term benefits

(12)

52

(359)

813

3,940

5,007

Share awards

Full details of the remuneration of key management personnel for the year ended 30 June 2016 are outlined in the
Directors’ Report.					
The share awards of key management personnel for the year ended 30 June 2016 are outlined in the Directors’ Report.

11. Auditor’s remuneration
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Audit and review of the consolidated financial statements

286

321

Audit services in accordance with regulatory requirements

93

95

-

10

379

426

10

10

Other services

356

155

Total remuneration for corporate entities

745

591

Auditor – Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Corporate entities
Audit & Assurance Services

Other assurance services
Other Services
Tax compliance services in respect of Group corporate entities

The ‘Other services’ amounts paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu are in accordance with the Company’s auditor
independence policy as outlined in the Corporate Governance Statement.

12. Current trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Allowance for doubtful debts
Other

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

7,230

4,894

(34)

(14)

4,080

4,771

11,276

9,651

The trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost.
The terms of payment for all trade receivables are 14 days from invoice date. All accounts receivable outstanding more
than 30 days are monitored and actively managed. No interest is charged on the trade receivables. An allowance has been
made for estimated irrecoverable amounts relating to outstanding trade receivables as determined by a specific review of
outstanding accounts. Factors considered in this review include the nature of the debtor, the relationship with the debtor,
length of time the debt has been outstanding and knowledge of the reason for the delay in payment.
Before accepting significant new clients the credit worthiness of these clients is assessed by either executive management
or the Due Diligence Committee (DDC) depending on the type of client. Other new client credit worthiness is assessed by
business managers as is appropriate to the size and nature of those clients and whether the client has funds deposited with
the Group from which the Group is permitted to withdraw payment of its fees.
Included within the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of $1,099,000 (2015: $506,000)
which are past due at the reporting date but these have not been provided for as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the amounts are considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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12. Current trade and other receivables (cont’d)
Other receivables include corpus commission, dividends and interest receivable. These receivables are with Australian
Securities Exchange listed companies, Australian banks, Australian managed investment schemes and client accounts
administered by the Group. These amounts are all considered recoverable.
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Under 30 days

779

276

30-60 days

148

99

Over 60 days

172

131

1,099

506

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Balance at beginning of the year

(14)

(13)

Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables

(87)

(31)

Amounts written-off as uncollectible

33

3

Impairment losses reversed

34

27

(34)

(14)

Trade receivables ageing of past due but not impaired

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at end of year

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due
to the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the Directors believe that there is no further credit provision
required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts. 					

13. Accrued income and other current assets
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Prepayments

1,437

1,598

Accrued income

4,119

5,040

5,556

6,638

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

108

108

1,717

1,102

1,825

1,210

14. Non-current trade and other receivables

Corpus commission earned but not collected
Other receivables
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15. Other financial assets
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

-

10,493

Term deposits

-

5,150

Total

-

15,643

Available-for-sale investments carried at fair value:			
Managed investments schemes
Loans and receivables carried at amortised cost:

16. Furniture, equipment and leasehold

Gross carrying amount

Computer
hardware &
equipment
at cost
$’000

Leasehold
improvements
at cost
$’000

Office
furniture &
equipment
at cost
$’000

Total
$’000

Balance at 1 July 2014

2,516

1,239

844

4,599

Additions

205

56

87

348

Disposals

(263)

(5)

(13)

(281)

2,458

1,290

918

4,666

Additions

818

1

98

917

Disposals

-

-

(43)

(43)

3,276

1,291

973

5,540

1,522

986

589

3,097

(262)

(5)

(5)

(272)

435

121

93

649

1,695

1,102

677

3,474

-

-

(43)

(43)

464

99

83

646

2,159

1,201

717

4,077

763

188

241

1,192

1,117

90

256

1,463

Balance at 30 June 2015

Balance at 30 June 2016
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2014
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Balance at 30 June 2015
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Balance at 30 June 2016
Net book value
As at 30 June 2015
As at 30 June 2016

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

464

435

Leasehold improvements

99

121

Office furniture and equipment

83

93

646

649

Aggregate depreciation recognised as an expense during the year:
Computer hardware and equipment

No depreciation was capitalised.
Depreciation expense is included in the line item ‘Depreciation and amortisation expenses’ of the statement of profit or loss.
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17. Intangible assets
Gross carrying amount

Computer
Software
$’000

Leasehold
makegood
$’000

Management
rights
$’000

Total
$’000

Balance at 1 July 2014

9,631

234

30,272

40,137

Additions

2,407

-

51,752

54,159

Disposals

(193)

-

-

(193)

11,845

234

82,024

94,103

Additions

665

-

-

665

Disposals

(1,938)

-

-

(1,938)

10,572

234

82,024

92,830

3,457

145

1,409

5,011

Amortisation expense

1,119

27

1,345

2,491

Disposals

(152)

-

-

(152)

4,424

172

2,754

7,350

Amortisation expense

1,482

27

1,313

2,822

Disposals

(635)

-

-

(635)

5,271

199

4,067

9,537

7,421

62

79,270

86,753

5,301

35

77,957

83,293

Balance at 30 June 2015

Balance at 30 June 2016
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2014

Balance at 30 June 2015

Balance at 30 June 2016
Net book value
As at 30 June 2015
As at 30 June 2016

Amortisation expense is included in the line item ‘Depreciation and amortisation expenses’ of the statement of profit or loss.

Significant intangible assets
The Group holds the following significant management rights and customer contract intangibles. All these are externally
generated intangibles.

Equity Trustees Wealth Services Limited – indefinite life
Equity Trustees Wealth Services Limited – fixed life
EquitySuper Master Trust – indefinite life
Freedom of Choice – fixed life
Equity Superannuation Management Pty Limited – fixed life
Aged Care – fixed life

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

42,742

42,742

6,652

7,831

28,188

28,188

247

333

-

7

128

169

77,957

79,270

The above indefinite life intangibles have been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the Trustee & Wealth Services
(TWS) cash-generating unit. The carrying amount of the indefinite life intangibles allocated to the TWS cash-generating unit
is $70,930,000 (2015: $70,930,000).
Details of the TWS cash-generating unit, the value-in-use calculation of the recoverable amount and key assumptions are
contained in note 18.
Management has reviewed the useful life of the indefinite life intangibles and has determined that these indefinite life
intangibles continue to have indefinite lives. In undertaking this review management has considered the economic,
competitor and regulatory environment in relation to the Trustee Company and Superannuation industries, the contractual
rights and contractual relationships in relation to these indefinite life intangibles, and ability of the indefinite life intangibles
to continue to have value into the foreseeable future.
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18. Goodwill
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

102,177

102,177

-

-

102,177

102,177

102,177

9,508

Amounts recognised during the year

-

92,669

Balance at end of the financial year

102,177

102,177

Cost
Accumulated impairment losses
Balance at beginning of the financial year

There are no accumulated impairment losses (2015: nil).
During the financial year the Group assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill and determined that no impairment had
occurred (2015: nil).

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating units
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the following cash-generating units:
• Corporate Trustee Services (CTS) 					
• Trustee & Wealth Services (TWS) 					

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the following cash-generating units.
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

CTS

3,680

3,680

TWS

98,497

98,497

102,177

102,177

Corporate Trustee Services (CTS)
The recoverable amount of the CTS operating segment is determined based on a value-in-use calculation which uses cash
flow projections based on management’s forecast covering a five year period, together with a terminal value based on
a conservative rate of growth. These cash flows are discounted at a pre-tax rate of 10.16% (2015: 10.95%). Management
believes that any reasonable possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the CTS cash-generating unit.
The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations are the growth rate of funds under management, basis point fee
levels, and expense growth rate.

Trustee & Wealth Services (TWS)
The recoverable amount of the TWS cash-generating unit is determined based on a value-in-use calculation which uses
cash flow projections based on management’s forecast covering a five year period, together with a terminal value based
on a conservative rate of growth. These cash flows are discounted at a pre-tax rate of 10.16% (2015: 10.95%). Management
believes that any reasonable possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the TWS cash-generating unit.
The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations are the growth rate of funds under management and growth in
ongoing services revenue, growth in one-off advisory services and expense growth rate.

19. Current trade and other payables
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Trade payables

267

454

Goods and Services Tax payable

428

288

Other

283

433

978

1,175

The Group’s policy regarding trade payables is to pay all invoices by the due date. No interest charges have been incurred
on trade payables.
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20. Borrowings
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

8,000

-

8,000

-

Unsecured at amortised cost
Loan from ANZ

On 23 December 2015, EQT Holdings Limited obtained a new unsecured bank loan facility of $20,000,000 with Australia
and New Zealand Banking Group Limited. The drawn down loan amounts bear interest at variable market rates and are
repayable within one year. As at 30 June 2016, the amount drawn down from this facility was $8,000,000 (2015: nil). The
weighted average effective interest rate on the drawn down loans is 3.2% per annum (2015: nil debt). The undrawn amount
incurs a fixed charge. The loan facility has a term of less than one year and is an interim facility. The Group is in the process
of establishing a longer term facility.

21. Current provisions
Employee
benefits
(note 25)
$’000

Other
$’000

Total
$’000

4,371

1,109

5,480

Additional provisions recognised

-

1,180

1,180

Decrease arising from payments

-

(1,109)

(1,109)

(486)

-

(486)

3,885

1,180

5,065

Balance at 1 July 2015

Other movements
Balance at 30 June 2016

Other provisions include the Directors’ best estimate of amounts required to meet fringe benefit tax and other trade
payment obligations that are owing.

22. Other current liabilities
At amortised cost:
Corpus commission collected but not earned
Other

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

15

60

766

53

781

113

23. Non-current provisions

Balance at 1 July 2015
Other movements
Balance at 30 June 2016

Makegood
$’000

Employee
benefits
(note 25)
$’000

Total
$’000

234

1,707

1,941

-

17

17

234

1,724

1,958

The makegood provision represents the present value of the Directors’ best estimate of the future outflow of economic
benefits that will be required to settle the Group’s obligations to makegood its leased premises at the end of the leases.

24. Other non-current liabilities
Lease related liabilities
Corpus commission collected but not earned
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2016
$’000

2015
$’000

37
35
72

130
35
165

25. Employee benefits
The aggregate employee benefits liability recognised and included in the
financial statements is as follows:

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

2,043

1,931

248

213

1,508

2,021

86

206

3,885

4,371

1,724

1,707

5,609

6,078

Provision for employee benefits
Current (note 21)
– Annual leave
– Long service leave
– Bonus
– Directors' Retiring Allowance
Non-current (note 23)
– Long service leave

The above employee benefit provisions are the Directors’ best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will
be required to settle these future payment obligations.

26. Issued capital

19,958,965 fully paid ordinary shares (2015: 19,693,727)

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

231,780

227,652

Changes to the then Corporations Law abolished the authorised capital and par value concept in relation to share capital
from 1 July 1998. Therefore, the Company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital and issued shares do not
have a par value.
2016
Fully paid ordinary shares

2015

No. ‘000

$’000

No. ‘000

$’000

19,694

227,652

19,105

216,117

Shares issued under employee share scheme

10

226

10

220

Shares issued under executive share scheme

75

809

39

372

Shares issued under employee salary sacrifice

2

43

3

62

Shares issued under share placement

-

-

235

4,953

178

3,067

302

6,108

-

(17)

-

180)

19,959

231,780

19,694

227,652

Balance at beginning of financial year

Shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan
Share issue costs net of tax
Balance at end of financial year

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.

Share awards
In accordance with the provisions of the Executive Performance Share Plan 1999 (the Plan), as at 30 June 2016, eligible
executives have share entitlements over 68,000 ordinary shares (2015: 126,000), in aggregate. Further details of the Plan are
contained in the remuneration report within the Directors’ Report.
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27. Other reserves
Employee
equity-settled
benefits
reserve
$’000

Capital
reserve
$’000

Total
$’000

1,892

-

1,892

(1,035)

-

(1,035)

Movement in provision

(175)

-

(175)

Transfer of reserves to capital reserve

(200)

350

150

482

350

832

Balance at 1 July 2015
Shares issued

Balance at 30 June 2016

Employee equity-settled benefits reserve
The employee equity-settled benefits reserve arises on the granting of share entitlements to eligible employees under the
Executive Performance Share Plan 1999 (the Plan) (refer Directors’ Report) and on the provision for shares to be issued to
staff under the Employee Share Acquisition Plan (ESAP). The ESAP is in place to allow eligible employees to participate in
share allotments as approved by the Board on an ongoing basis as deemed appropriate. There is $300,000 provided for
ESAP in 2016 (2015: $240,000).

Capital reserve
Entities within the Group are holding capital reserves in relation to their Registrable Superannuation Entity (RSE) licence
requirements. These capital reserves are an interim measure until the Superannuation Funds that these entities act as RSE
for have fully established their Operational Risk Financial Requirement reserves.

28. Investment revaluation reserve
The movement in the investment revaluation reserve account is shown in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.
As at 30 June 2016, the investment revaluation reserve is nil. The investment revaluation reserve arose on the revaluation
of investment financial assets that were accounted for as available-for-sale (refer note 3.18). Where a revalued asset is sold,
that part of the revaluation reserve that relates to the sold asset is transferred to the income statement and where a revalued
asset is impaired, the portion of the reserve which exceeds the fair value of the impaired asset is transferred to the statement
of profit or loss.
The Group’s available-for-sale investments were disposed of during the current financial year resulting in the revaluation
reserve becoming nil.

29. Earnings per share
2016
Cents per
share

2015
Cents per
share

Basic earnings per share

66.98

87.80

Diluted earnings per share

66.47

87.16

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Earnings

13,288

16,959

No. ‘000

No. ‘000

19,838

19,316

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows:

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Earnings

13,288

16,959

No. ‘000

No. ‘000

19,991

19,457

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per
share
There were no discontinued operations (2015: nil).
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29. Earnings per share (cont’d)
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted
earnings per share reconciles to the weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:

2016
No. ‘000

2015
No. ‘000

19,838

19,316

Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of employee share
entitlements

153

141

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share

19,991

19,457

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings
per share

There have been no changes in accounting policies that have had an impact on earnings per share.

30. Dividends
2016

2015

Cents per
share

$’000

Cents per
share

$’000

Interim dividend: Fully franked (Prior year: Fully franked)

34

6,751

46

8,865

Final dividend: Fully franked (Prior year: Fully franked)

48

9,494

48

9,193

Fully paid ordinary shares
Recognised amounts

16,245

18,058

Unrecognised amounts
Final dividend: Fully franked (Prior year: Fully franked)

34

48

9,453

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Franking account balance at 1 July

5,267

7,624

Tax paid

7,135

5,348

8

35

Franking credits attached to interim and final dividends

(6,962)

(7,740)

Franking account balance at 30 June

5,448

5,267

224

2,333

Franking credits to be attached to dividends declared but not recognised

(2,910)

(4,051)

Adjusted franking account balance

2,762

3,549

Franking credits received

Franking credits that will arise from income tax payable at reporting date

6,790
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31. Commitments for expenditure
Capital expenditure commitments
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

16

31

8

-

Intangible assets
Not longer than 1 year
Plant and equipment
Not longer than 1 year

Operating lease commitments
The Group has operating leases relating to leases of office premises with lease terms of between 18 months and five years.
Apart from the 18 month lease, the leases are subject to annual rent reviews.
The Group has a number of equipment leases with expiry dates occurring in 2017 to 2018. These leases have minimum
monthly lease payments.

Non-cancellable operating lease payments
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

1,569

1,285

334

567

1,903

1,852

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Current

24

77

Non-current

14

37

38

114

Not longer than 1 year
Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years

In respect of non-cancellable operating leases the following liabilities have been recognised:
Lease incentives

The Group has no onerous lease contracts.
There are no non-cancellable operating sub-leases (2015: no non-cancellable operating sub-leases).

32. Contingent liabilities and assets
The ATO is undertaking a review of the tax treatment of an acquisition in the 2011 financial year. The Group received tax
advice in relation to the tax treatment and is of the opinion the tax treatment is correct. However, the ultimate outcome of
the ATO review is not yet known.
There are a small number of historic Superannuation matters that relate to third party service providers. It is possible that the
Group may need to make payments in relation to these in the 2017 financial year, but expects to fully recover these costs.
Apart from the above, there are no contingent liabilities (2015: nil).
There are no contingent assets (2015: nil).

68

EQT Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

33. Subsidiaries
Name of entity

Principal activity

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting power
held by the Group
2016

2015

Parent entity
EQT Holdings Limited

Holding company

Australia

Equity Trustees Limited

Financial services

Australia

100%

n/a

Equity Trustees Wealth Services Limited

Financial services

Australia

100%

100%

Equity Investment Management Limited

Superannuation
administration

Australia

100%

100%

Equity Trustees Superannuation Limited

Superannuation
trustee

Australia

100%

100%

EQT Aged Care Services Pty Ltd

Aged care services

Australia

100%

100%

EQT Services Pty Ltd

Non-trading at
30/06/2016

Australia

100%

n/a

EQT Legal Services Pty Ltd

Non-trading at
30/06/2016

Australia

100%

n/a

Equity Nominees Limited

Non-trading

Australia

100%

100%

Equity Superannuation Management Pty Ltd

Non-trading

Australia

100%

100%

Equity Superannuation Administration Pty Ltd

Non-trading

Australia

100%

100%

Super.com Pty Ltd

Non-trading

Australia

100%

100%

Super.com.au Pty Limited

Non-trading

Australia

100%

100%

Holdfast Fund Services Pty Ltd

Non-trading

Australia

100%

100%

Apex Super Pty Ltd

Non-trading

Australia

100%

100%

Simple Wrap Pty Ltd

Non-trading

Australia

100%

100%

Subsidiaries

Non-trading subsidiaries

Effective 14 December 2015, EQT Holdings Limited became the parent company of Equity Trustees Limited under a Scheme of
Arrangement and became the ultimate parent entity of the Group and the entity listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.
EQT Holdings Limited (2015: Equity Trustees Limited) is the head entity within the tax-consolidated group.
All the above subsidiaries are members of the tax-consolidated group.

Information about the composition of the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
Principal activity

Place of incorporation
and operation

Number of wholly-owned
subsidiaries
2016

2015

Holding company

Australia

1

-

Financial services

Australia

2

2

Superannuation administration

Australia

1

1

Superannuation trustee

Australia

1

1

Aged care services

Australia

1

1

Non-trading

Australia

10

8

Significant restrictions
The Company has no significant restrictions (2015: no significant restrictions).					
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34. Business combinations
Acquisition of businesses
No acquisitions

Year ended 30 June 2015
Effective 4 July 2014, the Group acquired 100% of the shares of Equity Trustees Wealth Services Limited (ETWSL) (formerly
ANZ Trustees Limited). ETWSL is a trustee company that has a strategic fit with the Group’s existing trustee company business.
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

-

156,009

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

-

10,638

Other current assets

-

1,976

Intangible assets

-

51,752

Other financial assets

-

58

Employee provisions

-

(942)

Provisions

-

(142)

-

63,340

Consideration
Cash
Acquisition related costs incurred in the current year were nil (2015: $32,000).
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition
Current assets

Non-current assets

Liabilities

For the current financial year there were no trade receivables acquired or contractual cash flows not expected to be collected
(2015: trade receivables acquired with a fair value of $32,000 had gross contractual amounts of $32,000 and the best estimate
at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected was nil).
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Consideration

-

156,009

Less fair value of identifiable net assets acquired

-

63,340

Goodwill arising on consolidation

-

92,669

Goodwill arising on acquisition

For the current financial year there was no goodwill acquired (2015: goodwill arose in relation to the acquisition of the ETWSL
business because the consideration paid effectively includes amounts in relation to the benefit of expected synergies,
revenue growth including from the acquired Will Bank and future market developments).			
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Consideration paid in cash

-

156,009

Less cash and cash equivalent balances acquired

-

10,638

-

145,371

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
For the current financial year, the amount included in the profit after tax in relation to acquisitions is nil (2015: the amount
included in the profit after tax for the year attributable to ETWSL entity is $8,329,000, revenue for the year included $24,388,000
in respect of ETWSL entity).
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35. Segment information
Information reported to the Group’s Executive Director (chief operating decision maker) for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of performance is focused on the categories of services provided to customers. The principal categories of
services are Trustee & Wealth Services and Corporate Trustee Services. No operating segments have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group. The Group’s reportable segments under AASB 8 are as follows:

Trustee & Wealth Services
Provides a range of Private Client, Philanthropic and Superannuation services including estate planning and management;
charitable, compensation, Indigenous and personal trust services; wealth management and aged care advice
and placement.					

Corporate Trustee Services
Provides a range of Responsible Entity (RE) and trustee services for managed investment trusts on behalf of local and
international fund managers and sponsors, as well as specialised trustee services for corporates and structured multi-party
transactions.					
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from continuing operations by reportable segment. There
were no discontinued operations (2015: nil).
Segment revenue

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Trustee & Wealth Services

58,342

60,030

Corporate Trustee Services

24,117

23,705

82,459

83,735

1,237

1,122

83,696

84,857

Unallocated
Total revenue per statement of profit or loss

The revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales
(2015: nil).
No single customer accounts for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
Segment net profit before tax

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Trustee & Wealth Services

14,235

16,843

Corporate Trustee Services

11,266

10,210

25,501

27,053

Unallocated

(6,588)

(2,895)

Total net profit before tax per statement of profit or loss

18,913

24,158

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the contribution earned by each segment without the allocation of non-operating expenditure
(including projects and acquisition related expenditure) or income tax. This is the measure used by the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
Revenue by product and service

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Trustee & Wealth Services

58,342

60,030

Corporate Trustee Services

24,117

23,705

82,459

83,735

For the purpose of monitoring performance, the chief operating decision maker reviews balance sheet items for the Group
as a whole. The Group’s assets and liabilities are not allocated to the reportable segments for management reporting
purposes.

Geographic segment
The Group operates only in Australia, which is treated as one geographic segment.
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36. Related party disclosures
Parent entity
The parent entity of the Group is EQT Holdings Limited
(2015: Equity Trustees Limited).
The ultimate Australian parent entity and ultimate parent
entity is EQT Holdings Limited (2015: Equity Trustees Limited).
Effective 14 December 2015, EQT Holdings Limited became
the parent company of Equity Trustees Limited under a
Scheme of Arrangement and became the ultimate parent
entity of the Group and the entity listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange.

Equity interests in related parties
Details of the percentage of ordinary shares held in subsidiaries
are disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.
The Company does not hold any interests in associates,
joint ventures or other related parties.

Transactions with key management personnel
(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Details of key management personnel remuneration are
disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements and in the
Directors’ Report.

(b) Loans to key management personnel
The Group had nil key management personnel loans as at
30 June 2016 (2015: nil).

(c) Director and key management personnel equity
holdings
Director and key management personnel relevant interests
in fully paid ordinary shares of EQT Holdings Limited (2015:
Equity Trustees Limited) are disclosed in the Directors’
Report.

(d) Entitlements to shares of EQT Holdings Limited
issued under the Executive Performance Share
Plan 1999
Details of entitlements to EQT Holdings Limited (2015:
Equity Trustees Limited) shares issued under the Executive
Performance Share Plan 1999 are disclosed in the Directors’
Report.

(e) Vested share awards
Details of vested share awards are disclosed in the Directors’
Report.

(f) Other transactions with key management
personnel
Some directors, key management personnel and their
associates have investments in managed investment
schemes for which a Group subsidiary acts as responsible
entity. These investments are made at arms length and
in the ordinary course of business. Some directors, key
management personnel and their associates receive wealth
management, superannuation and other financial services
from the Group. These services are provided at arms length
and in the ordinary course of business except the directors,
key management personnel and their associates are entitled
to receive the normal available staff discount or other
customary discount available in relation to size of business.
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During the year Ms Williams was a director of Victorian
Funds Management Corporation (VFMC), Defence Health
(DH) and Guild Group Holdings Limited (GGHL) which, on
behalf of VFMC, DH and GGHL clients, invests in various
managed investment schemes, some of which have a Group
subsidiary as responsible entity. In her role as director of
VFMC, DH and GGHL, Ms Williams was not actively involved
in investment selections or the appointment of the Company
as responsible entity to managed investment schemes in
which VFMC, DH or GGHL invested.
Ms O’Donnell is a director and is on the Investment, Audit
and Risk Committee of the Winston Churchill Memorial
Trust, which invests in a managed investment scheme, which
has a Group subsidiary as responsible entity. The investment
in the managed investment scheme was undertaken before
Ms O’Donnell became involved with the Trust. The Trust
is advised by an independent investment manager. Ms
O’Donnell does not participate in investment decisions
relating to the managed investment scheme and was not
actively involved in the appointment of the Company as
responsible entity to the managed investment scheme.
There were no other related party transactions between the
Group or the parent entity and key management personnel
or their related entities apart from the above (2015: nil).

Transactions with subsidiaries
Balances and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note. Details of transactions between the Group and
other related parties are disclosed below.
The Company had an interest free intercompany account
with its subsidiary Equity Trustees Limited, the amount
owed by the Company to this subsidiary at 30 June 2016 was
$4,682,000 (2015: nil). The Company did not have amounts
owing to it or by it with any of its other subsidiaries at year
end (2015: nil).
The Company and its controlled entities have entered into a
tax sharing arrangement, as disclosed in note 3.11.
All transactions between the Company and its controlled
entities took place on normal commercial terms and
conditions.

Investments in managed investment schemes
As at 30 June 2015, the Group did not have any investments
in managed investment schemes where a controlled entity
acts as responsible entity (2015: there were investments in
managed investment schemes where a controlled entity
acted as responsible entity; these investments were on an
arms length basis).
Apart from the above, there were no other transactions with
related parties.

37. Notes to the cash flow statement
(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash includes cash on hand and in banks and investments in money market
instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statement is
reconciled to the related items in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

48,723

24,954

(b) Reconciliation of profit for the period to net cash flows from operating activities
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

13,288

16,959

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

5,625

7,199

(Profit)/loss on sale of investments

(238)

-

Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets

2,155

1,795

Amortisation of management rights

1,313

1,345

(Profit)/loss on sale of plant and equipment

1,303

12

Equity-settled share-based payments

(133)

1,197

Interest income received and receivable

(884)

(869)

Dividends received and receivable

(115)

(253)

22,314

27,385

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables

(7,197)

(7,108)

(Increase)/decrease in other assets

6,629

(752)

(675)

225

Increase/(decrease) in other provisions

(1,937)

904

Cash generated from operations

19,134

20,654

Income taxes paid

(7,135)

(5,348)

11,999

15,306

Profit for the period

Movements in working capital

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Net cash generated by operating activities

(c) Non-cash financing activities
Non-cash financing activities during the year were dividend reinvestments of $3,067,000 (2015: $6,108,000) and employee
salary sacrifice share issues $43,000 (2015: $62,000).

38. Subsequent events
There has not been any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly
affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Group in future financial years (2015: nil).
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39. Financial instruments
(a) Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue on a going concern
basis while balancing achieving shareholder returns with prudential management of resources, achieving its
long-term strategy and meeting the financial requirements imposed by regulatory authorities and maintaining financial
covenants required by lenders.
Entities in the Group hold Australian Financial Services Licences (AFSL) and Registrable Superannuation Entity (RSE) Licences.
The licence holding entities are subject to regulatory financial requirements in relation to their AFSLs and RSEs. The Group is
subject to financial covenants in relation to its borrowings. Apart from the foregoing, there are no other externally imposed
capital requirements for the Group. The Group has met its regulatory financial requirements and debt covenants throughout
the 2016 year, and the regulatory financial requirements that applied for the 2015 year were met throughout that year. There
were no debt covenants or borrowings in the 2015 financial year.
For the 2016 financial year, ASIC provided relief in relation to the AFSL Net Tangible Assets (NTA) financial requirements to
allow these NTA requirements for the AFSL holding entities to be met on a group basis, with a minimum group NTA of $32m
required. This relief applied for the period from 1 July 2015 until 31 December 2015 and again for the period 1 January 2016
to 30 June 2016. The relief ended on 30 June 2016 and the AFSL licenced entities are required to hold NTA requirements in
accordance with the conditions applying under their individual AFSLs. The Group has ensured that each AFSL licenced entity
has sufficient NTA to meet its individual NTA requirements from 1 July 2016, and these NTA requirements and other AFSL
requirements are continuously monitored.
During the 2016 financial year, a holding company (EQT Holdings Limited) which does not hold any regulatory licences
became the ultimate parent entity and the entity listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. This restructure has provided
more efficient capital usage, licensing and business structures, and greater flexibility in relation to funding of the Group’s
activities. It has enabled the Group to take on a modest level of debt to assist in funding its regulatory capital requirements
in the 2016 financial year.
From the 2016 financial year, the capital structure consists of equity (refer note 26) and a modest amount of debt (refer
note 20). The introduction of a modest level of debt improves the cost efficiency of funding without significantly increasing
financial risk. As at 30 June 2016, the gearing percentage (debt to equity) was 3.3% (2015 nil debt).
The Group’s policy is to fund its normal activities from operating cash flows. Any substantial requirements such as a major
business acquisition will be funded using a suitable mix of accumulated surplus operating cash flows, a modest level
of debt, and equity funding raised through the issue of ordinary shares in the listed holding company, EQT Holdings
Limited. This policy is regularly reviewed in light of the Group’s long-term strategy, prudential management of resources,
dividend policy, market conditions, changing regulatory requirements in relation to its AFSL’s and RSE licence, and achieving
shareholder returns.

(b) Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the bases of
measurement and the bases for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of financial assets, financial liability and
equity instrument are disclosed in note 3.
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39. Financial instruments (cont’d)
(c) Categories of financial instruments
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

48,723

24,954

7,196

4,880

Loans and receivables – term deposits

-

5,150

Available-for-sale financial assets – cash/mortgage fund

-

8,057

Available-for-sale financial assets – managed investment schemes

-

2,436

55,919

45,477

267

454

8,000

-

8,267

454

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables – trade receivables

Financial liabilities
Amortised at cost – trade payables
Amortised at cost – borrowings

During the 2016 financial year there were no financial assets or liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss
for either the Group or the Company (2015: nil). No financial assets have been pledged as collateral for either liabilities or
contingent liabilities (2015: nil). No assets are held as collateral (2015: nil).

(d) Financial risk management objectives
The Group’s main financial instrument risk exposures relate to market risk (including interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity
risk. The Group manages financial instrument risk through a combination of executive management monitoring key financial
risks and the use of management and Board committees that manage and monitor particular activities and their related
financial risks. There is also the Board Risk Committee which monitors overall risk.
Both the executive management and committees report to the Board on a regular basis regarding their activities and
the related financial risks. The committees include a Management Audit Risk and Compliance Committee (MARCC),
Due Diligence Committee (DDC) and a Management Investment Committee (MIC). The MARCC reviews audit, risk and
compliance issues across the business, with the other committees, DDC and MIC, having a more specialised focus. The DDC
reviews new business proposals including the risks associated with the counter parties. The MIC responsibilities include
reviewing and managing the Group’s investment portfolio and its associated financial risks.
The liquidity position of the Group and Company are continuously monitored by executive management and the impact on
liquidity of any significant transaction, such as payment of a dividend, acquisition of a new business, and purchase of capital
assets is considered prior to the transaction being approved.
The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative
purposes. The Group’s investment policy is to hold financial instruments for the long-term to support capital and NTA
requirements. The asset allocation of the portfolio is conservative and complies with AFSL requirements. The AFSL
requirements include holding NTA 50% in cash or cash equivalents and 100% in liquid assets. The Group does not use
hedging to manage its financial risks.

(e) Market risk management
The Group’s primary exposure in relation to financial instruments is to interest rate risk. The exposure primarily arises in
relation to the Group’s investment portfolio (held to support NTA requirements) and borrowings. For the year ended
30 June 2016 and prior years, the Group had no exposure to foreign currency risk in relation to its financial instruments
(2015: nil borrowings). The Group does not use derivatives to manage market risks, as executive management do not believe
these risks currently warrant the use of derivatives due to their nature and relative low level of risk.
The Group’s market risks in relation to financial instruments are managed by executive management and MARCC. The MIC
provides guidance regarding the management of the investment portfolio. There has been no significant change from the
previous period to the Group’s exposure to market risk or the manner in which these risks are managed and measured,
except that the Group now has a modest level of borrowing and has put financial risk management processes in place for
these borrowings.
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39. Financial instruments (cont’d)
(f) Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk in relation to its financial instruments as funds are invested at variable interest
rates. The Group’s borrowings are at fixed interest rates. The Group has a policy of placing interest bearing investments
with Australian banks and other counterparties with strong credit ratings. This minimises the risk of default and also ensures
regulatory requirements regarding liquidity of NTA reserves are met. Within these parameters the Group seeks to make
interest bearing investments at the best available rates with Australian banks and other counterparties that meet its credit
rating and security criteria. These investment processes and reviews are overseen by the MARCC and guided by the MIC.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
A sensitivity analysis in relation to the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk at the end of the financial year is set out below.
Management has assessed the reasonably possible change in interest rates to be plus/minus 100 basis points for 2016
(2015: plus/minus 100 basis points) based on a review of market conditions. This assumes both long and short-term interest
rates will have the same basis point movement.
The sensitivity analysis is calculated using the end of year balance of the financial instrument where this balance is representative
of the balance throughout the year. If the end of year balance is not representative of the balance throughout the year, then the
sensitivity analysis is calculated using the average balance (calculated on a quarterly basis) held throughout the year.
Carrying
amount at
30 June 2016

Interest rate risk
-1%

+1%

2016

$’000

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

48,723

(333)

n/a

333

n/a

Amortised at cost – borrowings

(8,000)

25

n/a

(25)

n/a

Carrying
amount at
30 June 2015

Interest rate risk
-1%

+1%

2015

$’000

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

24,954

(166)

n/a

166

n/a

Loans and receivables – term deposits

5,150

(75)

n/a

75

n/a

Available-for-sale financial assets –
cash/mortgage fund

8,057

(55)

n/a

55

n/a

38,161

(296)

n/a

296

n/a
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39. Financial instruments (cont’d)
(g) Other price risk management
As at 30 June 2016, the Group had no exposure to other price risk (2015: other price risk exposure from its investment in an
Australian managed investment scheme).

Price sensitivity analysis
A sensitivity analysis in relation to the Group’s exposure to other price risk at the end of the financial year is set out below.
There is no exposure at the end of the 2016 financial year (2015: Australia managed investment scheme plus/minus 10% and
calculated using the average balance (calculated on a quarterly basis) held throughout the year).
Carrying
amount at
30 June 2015

Plus/minus
impact

Other price risk
Minus impact

2015

Plus impact

$’000

%

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

Profit
$’000

Equity
$’000

2,436

10%

n/a

(244)

n/a

244

Available-for-sale investments:
Managed investment schemes

(h) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group and the Company have adopted a policy of only dealing with credit-worthy counterparties as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The main source of credit risk in relation to financial instruments is
from outstanding accounts receivables, and deposits and fixed interest investments with banks and borrowings from banks
(2015: outstanding accounts receivables, and deposits and fixed interest investments with banks and investments in managed
investment schemes).
Executive management and, where applicable, the DDC reviews significant new clients before the take on of these clients
is approved. The review process includes establishing the credit worthiness of the client. Other new clients are reviewed
by business managers for credit worthiness as is appropriate to the size and nature of the client. The MARCC reviews and
monitors the deposits and fixed interest investments with counterparties and borrowings from banks including any credit
risk issues.
Accounts receivable consists of a large number of customers. Ongoing evaluation is performed on the financial condition of
outstanding accounts receivables by the applicable business managers.
The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics (2015: nil). The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the Group holds its liquid funds
with counterparties that have high credit-ratings assigned by international creditrating agencies and in managed investment
schemes which have a low risk of default.
As at 30 June 2016, the Group no longer has investments in managed investment schemes where a subsidiary acts as
responsible entity (2015: carrying value $2,436,000).
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents the
Company’s and Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral obtained.
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39. Financial instruments (cont’d)
(i) Fair value of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.
assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Fair
value
hierarchy

Fair value as at
2016
$‘000

2015
$‘000

-

2,436

Managed investment
schemes

Level 2

Valuation
technique

Relationship
Significant unobservable
unobservable
inputs to
inputs
fair value

Daily
published
prices

n/a

n/a

There was no transfer between Level 1 and 2 (2015: nil). The Group classified the investment in the managed investment
scheme as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy on the basis that although there are quoted market prices, active markets with
significant trading frequency and market volume did not exist. 							

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair
value disclosures are required)
The Directors’ consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements
approximates their fair values.

(j) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, who have put in place a suitable risk
management framework to manage the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities. The liquidity position of the
Group is continuously monitored by executive management and the impact on liquidity of any significant transaction, such
as payment of a dividend, acquisition of a new business, and purchase of capital assets, is considered prior to the transaction
being approved.
The Group does not have any derivative financial instruments.

Liquidity risk table
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.
Weighted average
effective interest rate
%

Less than
1 month
$’000

1-3
months
$’000

3 months
to 1 year
$’000

1-5 years 5+ years
$’000
$’000

2016
Non-interest bearing – trade creditors
Borrowings
Financial guarantee contracts

nil

267

-

-

-

-

3.2%

-

-

8,000

-

-

nil

-

-

-

-

-

267

-

8,000

-

-

2015
Non-interest bearing – trade creditors

nil

454

-

-

-

-

Financial guarantee contracts

nil

-

-

-

-

-

454

-

-

-

-

At the year end it was not probable that the counterparty to the financial guarantee contracts will claim under the contracts.
Consequently, the amount included above is nil (2015: nil). The maximum amount payable under these guarantees is
$1,910,000 (2015: $1,903,000).

(k) Financing facilities
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

8,000

-

Bank draw down facility
Amount used
Amount unused
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12,000

1,000

20,000

1,000

40. Parent entity information
The accounting policies of the parent entity, which have been applied in determining the financial information shown below,
are the same as those applied in the consolidated financial statements except as set out below. Refer to note 3 for a summary
of the significant accounting policies relating to the Group, and note 3.1 for information regarding the comparative amounts.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost. Dividends received from subsidiaries are recognised in profit or loss
when right to receive the dividend is established (and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the parent and
the amount of income can be measured reliably).
Details regarding the tax-consolidated group and tax sharing arrangements are in note 3.11.
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

7,008

34,208

238,341

214,322

245,349

248,530

Current liabilities

8,224

8,471

Non-current liabilities

4,683

2,182

12,907

10,653

232,442

237,877

231,780

227,652

Investment revaluation reserve

-

234

Other reserves

-

1,892

662

8,099

232,442

237,877

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

7,413

21,113

Other comprehensive income

-

(51)

Total comprehensive income

7,413

21,062

Financial position
Assets
Current assets
Non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Issued capital

Retained earnings
Total equity

Financial performance
Profit for the year

Contingent liabilities of the parent entity
The parent entity is the head entity in the tax-consolidated group. As stated in note 32, the ATO is undertaking a review of
the tax treatment of an acquisition in the 2011 financial year that resulted in a right to future income deduction. The Group
has received tax advice that the tax deduction was allowable and is of the opinion the tax deduction has been correctly
calculated and claimed. However, the ultimate outcome of the ATO review is not yet known.
Apart from the above, there are no contingent liabilities (2015: nil).

Commitments of the parent entity
The parent entity has no commitments for capital expenditure (2015: Equity Trustees Limited had a $31,000 capital expenditure
commitment for less than one year).
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Opinion
In our opinion:
(a) the financial report of EQT Holdings Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June
2016 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and
(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) the financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note
3.1.
Report on the Remuneration Report
We have audited the Remuneration Report as set out on pages 27 to 36 of the directors’ report for the year
ended 30 June 2016. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation
of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion
In our opinion the Remuneration Report of EQT Holdings Limited for the year ended 30 June 2016, complies
with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Neil Brown
Partner
Chartered Accountants
Melbourne 31 August 2016
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Additional Shareholder
Information
The following information was applicable as at 23 August 2016.

Substantial shareholders
The substantial shareholders in the Company, as disclosed in substantial shareholding notices given to the Company are:
Date of
last notice

Shareholding

% of
issued capital

Regal Funds Management Pty Limited

02/08/2016

1,222,199

6.12%

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

25/07/2016

1,165,992

5.84%

Australian Foundation Investment Company Limited

29/04/2016

1,303,232

6.53%

Bennelong Funds Management Group Pty Ltd

12/11/2015

1,218,155

6.14%

Class of shares and voting rights
As at 23 August 2016, there were 2,703 holders of the ordinary shares of the Company.
The voting rights attaching to the ordinary shares are set out in clause 41 of the Company’s constitution. In summary,
on a show of hands, every member present in person or by attorney or by proxy or by representative shall have one
vote. Where more than one proxy, representative or attorney is appointed, none may vote on a show of hands. Where
a person is entitled to vote in more than one capacity, that person is entitled only to one vote.
Upon a poll, every member present in person or by attorney or by proxy or by representative shall have one vote for
every share held by the member.
At 23 August 2016, there were share entitlements over 73,909 unissued ordinary shares. There were seven holders of
share entitlements. There are no voting rights attached to the unissued ordinary shares.

Distribution of shares
Size of holding

Holders of ordinary shares

1 – 1,000*

1,264

1,001 – 5,000

1,032

5,001 – 10,000

232

10,001 – 100,000

159

100,001 and over

16
2,703

* There were 73 shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel ($500) of ordinary shares based on the closing market price of $18.25 at
23 August 2016.
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20 largest security holders as at 23 August 2016
20 largest shareholders

No. of shares

%

1. J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited

2,217,040

11.10

2. HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited

1,804,796

9.04

3. Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited

1,614,031

8.08

4. Australian Foundation Investment Company Limited

1,303,232

6.53

5. National Nominees Limited

1,202,763

6.02

6. UBS Nominees Pty Ltd

900,785

4.51

7. RBC Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Limited <BKCUST A/C>

633,921

3.18

8. Milton Corporation Limited

500,697

2.51

9. Superdeck Pty Ltd <D K C & E Groves S/Fund A/C>

301,711

1.51

10. Mirrabooka Investments Limited

300,000

1.50

11. BKI Investment Company Limited

162,961

0.82

12. Equity Nominees Limited <No 2 Account>

143,840

0.72

13. Mr Leonard Clive Keyte

135,243

0.68

14. Brispot Nominees Pty Ltd <House Head Nominee No 1 A/C>

121,271

0.61

15. CS Fourth Nominees Pty Limited <HSBC Cust Nom AU Ltd 11 A/C>

117,782

0.59

16. BNP Paribas Nominees Pty Ltd <Agency Lending DRP A/C>

108,457

0.54

17. KJE Superannuation Pty Ltd <KJE Superannuation S/F A/C>

91,389

0.46

18. Margaret Crutch

80,882

0.41

19. Mr Peter John McCleave

71,710

0.36

20. BNP Paribas Noms Pty Ltd <DRP>

70,652

0.35

11,883,163

59.52

8,081,718

40.48

Total top 20 holders of ordinary fully paid shares
Total remaining holders balance

Unquoted securities
The share rights on issue were issued as part of an employee awards plan and are unquoted.

Restricted securities
There were no restricted securities as at 23 August 2016.

On-market buy-back
There is no current on-market buy-back.
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